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About the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council

The Accounting and Financial Reporting Council (AFRC) is an independent body established under the
Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Ordinance. As an independent regulator, AFRC spearheads
and leads the accounting profession to constantly raise the level of quality of professional accountants,
and thus protects the public interest and promotes the healthy development of the accounting profession.

For more information about the statutory functions of the AFRC, please visit www.afrc.org.hk.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHRE

Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP Chairman
BEREELT  MEAEE > KFHL £F

“While excessive regulation may
hamper market development, a
laissez-faire policy will undermine
the credibility of our trusted financial
infrastructure. An effective financial
regulator would therefore need to
strike the right balance between
regulation and development of the
profession.”
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BREBRSERERMRAURIELU
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| 'am honoured to present to you the Annual Report for the year ended
31 March 2024, a year full of challenges for both the accounting profession
and the AFRC.

In the past year, the global financial markets continued to be affected by
economic uncertainty arose from wars, geopolitical tensions and slower-than-
expected post-pandemic recovery. Accounting scandals and financial frauds
have also been plaguing the financial markets in different parts of the world.

In this trying times, it is important that different stakeholders within the
financial ecosystem including directors of companies, the accounting
profession and audit committees recognise the value of quality audit and
financial reporting in ensuring public confidence in the capital markets. As
an independent regulator, the AFRC is dedicated to promoting this value
through effective regulation and propelling the development of the accounting
profession.
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Maintaining high audit quality through enhanced

regulatory tools

The foundation of a trustworthy financial market lies in a high-quality financial
reporting regime. Since the implementation of the new regulatory regime
on 1 October 2022, we have exercised our full range of regulatory powers,
resulting in our first batch of enforcement decisions this year. These decisions
serve as a powerful deterrent against misconduct, and we have taken the
initiative to provide transparent explanations of the regulatory principles
underlying each decision. By promoting transparency and fairness, we aim to
ensure regulatees understand our expectations and encourage behavioural
change that upholds proper standards of conduct.

At the forefront of regulation, we adopt a proactive, risk-based, proportionate,
and multi-pronged approach to supervision, regulation, and enforcement.
Such approach enables us to ensure compliance with regulatory requirements
by the accounting profession. Our vigilance in identifying non-compliance
and irregularities is also vital to prevent audit quality risks from escalating and
jeopardizing the public interest.

Encouragingly, our efforts have started yielding results, with gradual
improvements in the audit quality as demonstrated in our inspection results.
Also, we have been making substantial progress in the efficiency of handling
the increasing load of complaints and investigation cases.

Promoting sustainable professional development
Nurturing a competitive environment that fosters the success of the
accounting profession is one of our primary objectives. To this end, we have
been facilitating mutual communication and understanding through gathering
feedback on our initiatives from the accounting profession and developing
policies that enhance operational resilience and sustainability within the
profession.

While excessive regulation may hamper market development, a laissez-faire
policy will undermine the credibility of our trusted financial infrastructure. An
effective financial regulator would therefore need to strike the right balance
between regulation and development of the profession. To this end, we
have taken a carrot-and-stick approach that benefits both the public and
the industry. Our regulatory initiatives ultimately aim to enforce self-discipline
within the accounting profession, thereby ensuring a disciplined market that
maintains its quality and reputation whilst encouraging healthy competition
and industry growth.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ER®E

We also focus on effective stakeholder engagement through seminars,
briefings, and publications to communicate our regulatory principles and
expectations. These activities facilitate the sharing of regulatory findings, the
promotion of best practices, and guiding the market to formulate policies
driving continuous improvements in audit quality. Additionally, surveys and
analysis provide a holistic view of the audit market, enabling us to formulate
appropriate actions to further enhance audit and financial reporting quality.

Solid progress in collaboration and regulation

To combat financial crimes which have been evolving fast, collaborative
efforts among regulators from different disciplines and jurisdictions to address
common concerns are highly important. In the past year, we effectively
combatted market misconduct through case referrals, joint investigations,
capacity building, and information exchange. This seamless cooperation
ensures orderly financial market operations and safeguards the public
interest.

At a local level, we have demonstrated concerted efforts against suspected
misconduct and corporate fraud through a tripartite operation with the
Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) and the Securities and
Futures Commission (SFC). Moreover, our Memorandum of Understanding
(MoU) with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA) signifies our
increased determination to uphold financial reporting, auditing, and
accounting profession standards related to banking sector.

Given the interconnectedness of the Mainland and Hong Kong'’s financial
markets, cross-border collaboration is pivotal for effective enforcement. We
are delighted to have further strengthened our relationship with the Bureau
of Supervision and Evaluation (SEB) of the Ministry of Finance (MoF) of the
People’s Republic of China. This year, we obtained audit working papers
located on the Mainland for inspection and investigation, ensuring that PIE
auditors are subject to the AFRC’s regulations regardless of where they keep
their audit working papers.

Embracing a greener future

Our strategic collaboration extends to sustainability through our membership
in the Green and Sustainable Finance Cross-Agency Steering Group (CASG).
Climate reporting and Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) factors
are not mere regulatory obligations. They are a means to shoulder greater
social responsibility and seize development opportunities for the accounting
profession. We have developed a sustainability roadmap and action plan to
enhance the quality of financial and sustainability reporting, and are dedicated
to developing a comprehensive ecosystem for sustainability disclosure for
the financial community. By leading and shaping the regulatory regime for
sustainability assurance in Hong Kong, we aim to prepare the profession to
achieve their ESG reporting objectives.
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Looking ahead

As the financial market evolves and faces upcoming challenges, including
talent shortage, we must have the determination to transform these
challenges into opportunities with limited resources. | am delighted to observe
that some positive signs are emerging, offering a brighter future for us all.

| would like to express my gratitude to our committed staff for fulfilling the
AFRC’s mission and to our Board Members for their wise counsel and
guidance. Together, we will continue to strengthen the regulatory framework,
promote high audit quality, and support the sustainable development of the
accounting profession. | would also like to extend my heartfelt thanks to the
Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau for offering their unfailing support
and recognition of our work.

Looking ahead, the AFRC remains steadfast in its commitment to maintaining
high audit quality, promoting sustainable professional development, fostering
regulatory collaboration, and embracing a greener future. By upholding
the highest standards of professionalism, integrity, and transparency, we
will continue to safeguard the public interest and ensure the stability and
confidence of Hong Kong’s financial market.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

TR RS

Ms Janey Lai CEO
BRERELL THEH

“The core of our work lies in achieving a
balance between regulation and professional
development, Throughout this year, we have
achieved desirable regulatory outcomes
by strengthening our regulatory tools and
enhancing collaboration. We have also
devoted substantial resources to promoting
the sustainable development of the accounting
profession.”

[BATENROREEEHERRRE 2BESF
e-SF AM-—EEBNREETARRES
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At a time when the world is dealing with global economic challenges,
a shortage of talent and limited resources, the AFRC has continued to
successfully fulfil its responsibilities. By upholding the quality of the accounting
sector during the reporting period, it has also ensured the integrity and
sustainable operation of the accounting profession.

We have exercised stringent expenditure control and strategically deployed
our available resources when exercising our regulatory functions. The core
of our work lies in striking a balance between regulations and professional
development, through five pillars: Dialogue, Understanding, Collaboration,
Law and Governance, and Thought Leadership. Our ultimate objective
is to create a positive ripple impact through the accounting profession to the
wider public.

Upholding audit quality with a proportionality

approach and multi-pronged regulatory tools

The foundation for nurturing healthy and long-term development of the
accounting profession lies in upholding audit quality and continuously raising
the standards of the profession.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

To conduct and enforce effective regulation, we adopt a proportionality and
risk-based approach in discharging our responsibilities. In our inspection
function, we prioritised engagements of greater public interest for inspection,
both for Public Interest Entity (PIE) auditors and non-PIE practice units. In
response to the significant increase in complaints along with the increased
public awareness of the AFRC, our investigation function handled complaints
efficiently without compromising public interests.

Guiding market behaviour through comprehensive

enforcement

During this year, we published four disciplinary decisions covering a range
of misconducts. Despite the complexity of these cases and our limited
resources, we were able to handle cases diligently and efficiently. Our
disciplinary decisions not only demonstrated our commitment to upholding
high standards of professional conduct but they also aimed to guide market
behaviour through transparent communication of our guiding principles. This,
in turn, deters future misconduct and protects the public interest.

Promoting understanding of our regulatory

principles through dialogues

We believe in the power of constructive dialogue to communicate and
interact with the accounting profession, ensuring better understanding of
our regulatory principles and policies. We disseminate messages through
publications, stakeholder engagement activities and speaking opportunities.

This year, we issued Annual Inspection Report, Audit Focus, Inspection
Insights, Annual Investigation and Compliance Report, and Guidance Notes,
all of which aimed to share our observations, recommendations, and best
practices to address identified deficiencies. These publications served as
valuable reminders and sources of guidance for the profession, thereby
benefitting the market.

Our messages to the profession are just a part of our overall communication
framework. We aim to create positive ripple effects in the business
environment in order to benefit the accounting profession. We have engaged
with key stakeholders, including directors of listed companies, independent
non-executive directors and audit committees at briefings and seminars
involving diverse groups with over 11,700 participants as they are all integral
to the financial reporting ecosystem. Together, we share the responsibility of
upholding audit quality and improving financial market credibility.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT
THARSRE

Creating synergy through regulatory collaboration
We enhanced regulatory collaboration with our local and Mainland
counterparts to uphold market quality and integrity, safeguard public interest
and reinforce confidence in financial reporting. We shared market intelligence
and expertise to shape a comprehensive regulatory regime that safeguards
investors’ interests. Our professional staff have also benefited from the
enforcement actions, joint training sessions and sharing sessions with
regulators from different disciplines.

The issue of the first joint statement with the SFC regarding listed issuers
granting dubious loans demonstrated our shared regulatory concerns and
collective commitment to combat market misconduct and safeguard the
public interest among regulators.

The first tripartite joint operation with the ICAC and the SFC against
suspected misconduct and corporate fraud involving a ramp-and-dump
syndicate remarked a milestone of significance for both the AFRC and the
market demonstrating our role and commitment to pooling expertise and
resources for effective regulation in safeguarding the public interest.

This year, we obtained the first set of audit working papers located in the
Mainland for inspection. It marked another major milestone in regulatory
collaboration between the two regulators since the signing of the MoU with
the MoF in May 2019. Both parties will continue to evaluate the agreed
mechanism to ensure its smooth and efficient operation.

Our regulatory collaboration has also extended to other innovative fronts.
In January 2024, we became a member of the Green and Sustainable
Finance Cross-Agency Steering Group to drive the work on sustainability
assurance and provide a roadmap for the profession. It will contribute to the
development of a robust ecosystem for sustainability disclosures in Hong
Kong and enhance its position as a leading sustainable finance hub.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

Our commitment to thought leadership and

governance

As a financial regulator, we recognise the importance of staying at the
forefront of industry developments and emerging trends. We are committed
to developing our thought leadership and will actively contribute to the
development of accounting and auditing standards.

This year, we have actively participated in international standard-setting
activities and provided input to consultations on proposed standards and
amendments. Our contributions aim to ensure that the perspectives of Hong
Kong'’s accounting profession are considered in the development of global
standards.

In addition, we have continued to enhance our own governance and internal
processes. We have conducted a comprehensive review of our regulatory
framework making necessary adjustments to ensure its relevance and
effectiveness. We have also implemented measures to enhance operational
efficiency and streamline processes allowing us to better utilise our resources
and fulfil our regulatory responsibilities.

Ensuring the quality of professional accountants

As the gatekeeper of the accounting profession, we adopt a robust
registration process to ensure all applications are vetted prudently. Individuals
who failed to meet the fit and proper requirements are refused for registration.
The registration process has also been re-engineered and streamlined to
enhance the efficiency of processing new and renewal applications.

We also play an important role in overseeing the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants’ (HKICPA) performance of specified functions
to ensure the quality, professionalism and competency of the accounting
profession. The HKICPA must effectively allocate its resources to develop
the profession by enhancing their skill set, integrity and ethics. This year, we
published the 2023 Oversight Report which set out strategic, relevant, and
high-level guidance to the HKICPA to drive improvement. We will continue
to maintain close dialogue with the HKICPA to ensure effective planning and
implementation of their specified functions.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT
THARSRE

Looking ahead

As we move forward, we remain committed to our mission of promoting audit
quality, upholding market integrity and safeguarding the public interest. We
will continue to strengthen our regulatory tools, enhance collaboration with
stakeholders and foster a culture of compliance and professionalism within
the accounting profession.

We are fully aware of the evolving landscape in which we operate with
emerging technologies, changing business models and increasing demands
for sustainability reporting. We will adapt to these changes and ensure our
regulatory approach remains agile, relevant and effective.

We will also continue to engage in meaningful dialogues with stakeholders to
seek input and feedback and understand their views. By working together,
we can build a stronger and more resilient financial reporting ecosystem that
fosters confidence and supports sustainable economic growth.

In closing, | would like to express my gratitude to our dedicated staff whose
professionalism and commitment have enabled the AFRC to achieve its
regulatory objectives. | would also like to extend my appreciation to our
stakeholders for their continued support and collaboration.

Together, let us embrace the opportunities and challenges that may lie
ahead as we strive to build a vibrant and trusted accounting profession
that contributes to the continued prosperity of Hong Kong as well as its
development as a vibrant and robust international financial centre.
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MISSION AND STRATEGIC FOCUS

Mission £

fEan R EE

The mission of the AFRC is to shape a competitive environment that will nurture and promote the success of the profession.
This pivotal role not only enhances the quality of financial reporting but in turn reinforces our pursuit of promoting the healthy
development of the profession and Hong Kong’s position as a competitive international financial centre.

BIEAREE @ HBERANAKERRLEBERA

The AFRC fulffills its mission through:

Dialogue

Understanding

Collaboration

Law and Governance

Thought leadership

Core Values
The AFRC is committed to the following core values:

Independence and impartiality

The AFRC operates independently. We perform our functions fairly,
impartially and consistently, free from interference by the auditing
profession and listed entities, and from political pressure.

Accountability and transparency

The AFRC believes that as a regulator, we should be accountable and
transparent. We publish reports to allow the profession and the public to
understand our operations and facilitates judgment of our performance.
Integrity

Given the nature of our work, Board Members and staff must be of the
highest integrity. We adhere to high ethical standards in conducting our
activities.

Proficiency

We pledge to achieve our missions efficiently, effectively and
professionally.
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MISSION AND STRATEGIC FOCUS
EALYS T E R

Strategic Focus

REEER

EZE [—ER - —3t]

To solidify ‘One Team One Culture’

Our departments work closely together to share regulatory findings and
intelligence and flag emerging risks in order to ensure timely address of our
regulatory concerns. The seamless collaboration among departments is
important in maintaining a cohesive and consistent regulatory approach, as
well as enhancing the efficiency of our regulatory work and the effectiveness
of our regulatory outcomes.
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To enhance public understanding of our regulatory
principles, policies and impacts

g ARBRFANEERE - BRMTZENER

We interact with the regulatees, stakeholders and the wider public through
diversified communication channels, including publications, briefing sessions,
seminars, conferences and media to communicate our regulatory principles
and expectations. This is to ensure our rationales behind each of our initiatives
are well received by the market.

Market awareness and understanding of our regulatory findings about
misconduct, non-compliance with accounting requirements, as well as
the impact of our regulatory outcomes are important in driving further
improvement of the standard of conduct of the profession, and establishing
the AFRC as the trusted regulator in safeguarding audit quality.

BIEBZHRCBRRE  BREORTY - B
He Mg gINEREAREEE SO
ERBRRBRR - MEERFINEE RN
2 o I BRREERTISER R ERRMSBREES
BHIRS o

MZHEBRETR BB TENETENE
ERAULREERRTENBINIZM - S0
BE-FRSBITERETRE  URELA B
EEFTEZTEANTHREZHEE  TAPEIH
PIERESERNEERIBAIMA -
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Our regulatory functions cover market surveillance, investigative and
enforcement actions. After identifying significant deficiencies in audit quality
from our inspection function, and potential misconduct and accounting
non-compliance from complaints, referrals and financial statements review
programme, appropriate regulatory and enforcement actions are taken by
our investigation and discipline functions. Through robust and transparent
disciplinary actions, we set expectations on the proper standard of conduct
and promote a proactive compliance culture within the profession.

MISSION AND STRATEGIC FOCUS
ALY E R

BHAMEEBRERETHER - FAENPET
o REPINERBRETERBAERTENE
RERK - ARPEHREF - B R B HEREHNT S
TERREENRETAREFTEREEER &
P AERCERED BFISRIEE R EE R
ETE o BBREMEANLEEY - RfIEE
HIEZRTRENME  AEXFEERBTH
BRI °

To spearhead positive changes in attitudes and
behaviours of the accounting profession

SIEERERNERERTS

We promote and inspire positive changes in attitudes and behaviours through
research, publications, communications and enforcement actions.

An effective communication with key stakeholders including the PIE
auditors, directors and audit committees of listed entities and investors on
our expectations of their respective roles and responsibilities is essential in
spearheading positive changes in audit quality.

We also highlight common deficiencies identified from our inspections of
engagements and quality management systems and their common causes,
the findings about misconduct and accounting non-compliance identified
from investigations and enquiries, as well as the recommendations of best
practices in order to drive positive improvements in market behaviour. The
improvement in the reputation of the industry will in turn contribute to the
sustainable development of the profession.

Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2023-24 &%t RIISERF 2023-24 F 3R

BFVEBIAR - HRTY - BERIETE -
EMSBREE R AT RIEIRIUE -

BIERNE (BRARNEEBZEE LTE
BHNEELETZEGULRES) ARMAYES
BAELEINMEETAEIER  HN5EE
AEENERNEEREEE -

BAMEh B HE REREEFENERTHE
BNEARAREERRE  RAEREAH %
BORETRREFTERER - URKEHE
B ABTISTTRABENE - (TEBENK
EMERETENAREER
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MISSION AND STRATEGIC FOCUS
EALYS T E R

To strengthen strategic collaborations with local,
Mainland and international regulators

HNSRELZRHY - Pyt B PR EEE B R R IR E S MF

We collaborate with other local regulators of different disciplines to maximise
regulatory synergies to address common regulatory concerns, combat market
misconduct and to ensure the orderly operation of the financial market. We
also conduct joint operations with other regulators where required to combat
financial crime and serious misconduct.

Strengthening collaborations with Mainland and overseas regulators
enable effective enforcement to combat misconduct as markets are more
interconnected. Our engagement with international regulators is not only
conducive to building a comprehensive regulatory framework globally, it also
enhances global investor confidence in Hong Kong’s regulatory regime which
will in turn solidify the city’s status in attracting global capital.

BAEEMRRNAMEERBESIF - FEKK
MEEHRME - NEEXFBOMNEERE
TEMSRENTR  BRERTSEFEE - 1
BEFE Bt eElHEMETRBETHAETT
B TESRILRERBERETR -

PEE B EMS AR E - B R EREE R
MBRERBRERIEL - TBRETR ° B
HEREERENAE  TERBERKEY R
HEERRE  EANREHREENETBEE
HENEL  KMEEEFEERIZRESTE
EHEAL o

To promote the sustainable development of
the accounting profession

RESTHERNTHERR

Our publications of different departments aim at sharing valuable insights and
recommendations for driving market development and improvement in the
reputation of the accounting profession.

We develop policies and guidance based on our research with an aim
to inspiring positive changes in market behaviour, thereby promoting the
healthy development of the profession, in particular the small and medium
practitioners.

HATEEFFINTIMEED ZFABENRELZ
& NHESTSERIES G EENRE

BPEMEROER EHRTBR KRS - §HERE
ST RMERSCE - KMeE TR LEEH )
BHEALHRERR -
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Highlights
Key figures for 2023-24

HIGHLIGHTS
TEEE

BE
2023F £2024F T EHIE

BE

5 0 practice units
RUEEM

listed entity audit engagements
54 B L EREsRE

4 2 engagements (other than listed entity audit engagements)
E3E LT ERFHER

inspections regarding compliance with anti-money
4 2 laundering and counter-terrorist financing requirements

REREFNERHRBHI FRERERNENER

1 3 follow-up inspections on engagements
EFEHREMREER

3 specific scopes inspection
RECHEER

Investigation and enquiry .

HAERER

Recelved 1 9 0 pursuable complaints and referrals

RATRERFREN

Handled
EX

pursuable complaints and referrals
2 6 1 RAURERFREA

Completed 1 9 7 complaints and referrals

assessments of pursuable

R BRE IR BR B B A BT A

Proactively selected

EFHmE

financial statements for
1 3 0 review
R BERE

Handled 2 2 3 investigations
RAEMEE

LERED

Handled 1 4 disciplinary cases

FRiCRESER
Completed disciplinary cases
SR FILRESER
Issued 1 6 Notices of Proposed Disciplinary Action
NRBICRESTHEME
Sanctioned regulatees
ES REREETE
Imposed $1 18 pecuniary penalties
ELIE®
millonE&EB T
Issued Compliance Advice Letters
= RERBRE

Completed l7 investigations
SERX RAEMER
Handled

-4 ]

s

3 2 stakeholder engagement activities
BiSMERETE

3 8 press releases
RHFELE
1 1 2 staff (as of 31 March 2024)
#ZATI (#F2024%38318)

22 total expenditure for the year
millionE&E& T FREEM

Policy, Registration and Oversight I
BER - MR EE

T8 1,700 SRR

attendees participated in our

11

seminars

DT Y

Approved
i 14:

new and renewal applications for
7 048 registration of practice units

RRUREMNBHR ARG

Approved
g

83

new and renewal applications for
registration of local PIE auditors
EFHOARFSEREBEAO2 N
RS

Approved
i1

5 4 recognition of overseas PIE auditors

new and renewal applications for

KPR AT S EEZMERL
N RERREE

Observed
DBRRESmHE

2 6 HKICPA committee meetings
THERMIAFZRTER
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HIGHLIGHTS
TEER,

Paper: AFRC Addresses Concerns

Surrounding Auditor Changes
X B R IEAZ AN B S| AR

Guidance Notes on Change of Auditors

FHRREAI G

20283 Annual Investigation and

Compliance Report
2023 FEFHERE

EE@ Launched Inspection Questionnaire
=0 A RS

Entered into a new MoU with the HKMA
WeE RE TR AR

&

The first discipline case

BRLRED

%

Joint statement with the SFC
B e RS B

Apr - Jun
Issued 2022-23 Annual Report
=

&

2022 Annual Inspection Report
2022 FEEFWRE

B

BHn 2022-23 F

@ Duty visit to Mainland regulatory [m;
"

authorities i

. . Audit Focus: Effective Planning: The Ke
RN i ¢ Y

to High-Quality Audits
EITER  BANGH - eERHEN

B

Set out position on documentation

of an auditor's work

FAXBEIER T TECE RIS
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HIGHLIGHTS
TEEZ

023

Oct - Dec

Started inspecting audit working
:@ papers located in Mainland

IR E RF NN A BT T
Ef&

Audit Focus: 2023 Financial Year-

end Audit Reminder
FRTARE 1 2023 FHEREAEE
ESE]
dicpine cace concem Jan - Mar
blindly signing off auditor’s i,
reports

BEBEEZHEMBREDN ._; Report on the Analysis of the PIE

WwHEES ' Audit Market in Hong Kong

FRANBHNGEEBEATEOTRE &

B

A discipline case conceming

%

A discipline case concerning

@ non-compliance of the AFRC's Internal learning sessions relating to

— statutory requirement "[D'_ Safeguarding National Security Bill and
BRAKE R BEE B §9x(ﬁmé%%ﬂms%mm
wWEED B (HERR L2 IEHIER) & 2024 F

EMERHNANEEER

A discipline case concerning report on
Q compliance of regulatory requirements
[a— in respect of solicitors' accounts
BRAEANR B BB B RERMENL
BED

2023 Inspection Insights
2023 EERR

B

Explanatory video on inspection of
non-PIE Practice Units
FRBHNRERBAESLEEREN
fRE R

Commenced specific scope
@ inspection

FRFEREER

Became a member of the CASG

RIS E G/ MER R

Article: Continuing Professional
Development as a Key to Improving

B o

EE 2023 Oversight Report on HKICPA's Audit Quality in Hong Kong A
= . 43 iy == = +
- Performance of the Specified Functions XE  HEEHEERRATEES  EX
jm A P = s A d N (7
2023 FE HEB R A D B HITRPBALL CESL
EEWME

Briefing video on PIE Auditor Levy
First tripartite operation with - ABANREEZBMBEENER
the SFC and ICAC %
HBFESRRBEABNER HE
=HHATH B saief

&

Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2023-24 &%t RIISERF 2023-24 F 3R 17



18

HIGHLIGHTS
TEER,

Regulatory collaboration EEEE

One of the strategic focuses of the AFRC is to maximise regulatory outcomes @8 BRI E R —TEHRMEEL 55 B HEEE BN
through collective efforts with our counterparts. During the year, the AFRC ~ HE% 1 - BEZAMME SRR - £ > 28t
engaged with local, Mainland, and overseas regulators through duty visits, ~BBEBF: « Big @ s « HIH S U RBEERA
liaison meetings, training workshops, and events arranged by international 4% BER)EE) - EAND « ARG INEEE L EE
organisations. Activities are summarised as follows. TEE - AEEEBIMIT

Cross-border cooperation is essential as the capital markets of Hong Kong and the Mainland
become increasingly connected.

In April 2023, an AFRC delegation paid a three-day visit to Mainland regulatory authorities
including the SEB and the Accounting Regulatory Department of the MoF, the CSRC and the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

During the visit, we exchanged information on regulatory focus and key challenges, and
agreed to explore ways to collaborate in addressing key areas of common concern.

The CSRC and MoF also sent its delegates to visit the AFRC in June and July 2023
respectively, further strengthening cross-border regulatory collaboration.

RBEBBRAMEATENBMEARER  BRAFEHER -

K2023F4 78 - @M BREREERAASH=RNFHHE ' B T 2RV BRPEETERRSE
BE - PREES LREEME R E SN EEEEE -

FEHHE RAREEER R ERBIBER - YRBRS A EREARBIERRLN
73 e

RS E R B RIN202356 8 KT AE RN ESHIEGH S - #— S MEBHEES
o

AIFRC &5 ™

SMBESEFRMBEHLSTERE
2023%7F148

g

1
(] '&<>“

®

The AFRC meets with the Accounting Regulatory Department of the MoF.
SRR BHGAEHE
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HIGHLIGHTS
TEEH

As the independent audit regulator of an international financial centre, it is important for the
AFRC to strengthen global cooperation in areas relating to financial and corporate reporting
and audit quality, to benefit both local and global investors and Hong Kong’s financial stability.

As an affiliate member of the International Organization of Securities Commissions (I0SCO),
we attended IOSCQO’s Annual Meeting held in Bangkok in June 2023. The AFRC delegates
met with regulators from other jurisdictions and exchanged views on matters of mutual
interest in the regulation of audits of listed companies.

In September 2023, the AFRC’s delegates attended the 2023 combined ASEAN Audit
Regulators Group and Financial Statements Surveillance Group workshop in Singapore.

The workshop served as a useful platform for sharing intelligence on regulatory developments
and other initiatives aimed at enhancing audit quality and the value of auditing. It also
allowed us to deepen mutual understanding and foster close collaboration with our overseas
counterparts.

In November 2023, the AFRC’s delegates attended
the International Institute on Audit Regulation
organised by the PCAOB in Washington DC.

We engaged in active dialogues and exchanged
views on issues of audit quality and investor
protection with overseas regulators and
organisations, including the leadership of PCAOB,
the UK Financial Reporting Council and the B
Canadian Public Accountability Board. The visit 1.5 AFRc delegates attend the I0SCO Annual
enabled us to build a solid rapport with other audit  mesting in Bangkok.

regulators to strengthen future cooperation and Aﬁﬁ%ﬁilﬁ}*ﬁi/ﬁ&%ﬁﬁﬁlﬁ%‘;ﬁ%‘;
communication. meEe

EEBIR SR LABE Y ETESRE - S0 BINE Mm% k2 ER KRS E=EBED
NERAEEHEE ARAMEEHIEESE @ MEMESLRIBE -
ERBIREESHENM B E - ﬁﬁﬁf!%ﬁ%;%ﬁﬂﬂmﬁ%ﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬁmi
ﬁoﬁﬁ%&ﬁlﬁEmTXAE%E EEKEe® YR ETA sTESE 5 H AL R
DHEERBER

1K2023F9A - @ BRRE 2 NI ERITHI2023F R BT EE B WA/ ME B ISHRE
EEEUMAB AT -

M enElEEERNZHER  URRSBRAERLREMBENEORERHEARE
FH o FBIIRBUARE T A - EEEA%H@MMWAW

M20235F11 7 @ RRKREHEEERE LT AT @ EEE 8 @NERERNNEEETE
BEg o
PRGN BRI AL BEEE LT ARSHEERE S AEHUBERBMINEA

AHEEZEENEERE - W%ﬁ%%&%é%%@%%ﬁﬁﬂ%&iﬁ%ﬁ°%mmﬁﬁ
ERMRAMEASTRBRYRIFBE  MARRKEERR

The AFRC exchanges updates on regulatory The AFRC’s delegation attends the annual
developments with accounting regulators in event hosted by PCAOB in Washington DC.
the ASEAN region at a seminar. © 8 B K E K FEAPCAOBRE R BRI A
SHRRKENAT e hERE RN S HE Fgo

EWIBRNEE BRASAER
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HIGHLIGHTS
TEER,

We continued to interact with other local financial regulators and law enforcement agencies on
areas of common concerns and the sharing of skills and intelligence. We also conducted joint
operations to combat financial crimes and serious misconduct together. A new memorandum
of understanding with the HKMA is signed.

More details are included in the Operation Review of Departments.

TR AR AR B Lt A3 S 0 B M UM S LRI E ORISR - DR R B3R o Tl
TMRERER S 1TE) - KRITESRIEFERBERETR - HPITESERESHRRETE o

B EFBENEFIEEDE

In response to the increasing importance of sustainability and climate reporting in Hong Kong,
the AFRC has been actively involved in several ESG initiatives.

The AFRC became a member of the CASG in January 2024 and is involved in driving
the development of sustainability assurance in Hong Kong. We are working with other
CASG members and stakeholders to develop a regulatory regime and clear standards for
sustainability assurance, in support of the development of the ecosystem in Hong Kong,
thereby bolstering Hong Kong’s position as a leading sustainable finance hub.

We also formulated a sustainability action roadmap and implemented an action plan that
focuses on integration of climate risks in audits, and sustainability assurance, which provides
confidence to stakeholders on sustainability information and disclosures from companies.

ENBFEURBERREIRGHREAREE  SVRER2EETRE e kEREH -
S ER2024F1 AR RERBES VEKE  2EESHEFBUFEXZENER - HAIEE
BEES/ VEEMKERIFNESE  RAERENTEETERAREE  /HEBL
REENER MEBEEBERELNAFESRP OAMA -

1321FF17T%UET?%Z§§XJ?€?@J B - EiE{TERE - EREARRERAATT R ATFEX
C RENERHEAIRERREAL QR RENEL

¥ O % XY 24 AFRC

Green and Sustainable Finance Cross-Agency Steering Group

LeNdsESREReESE/AE

The AFRC attends the CASG meeting to discuss the development of the sustainability disclosure
eco-system in Hong Kong.
S RHEEREES/ MASE  AIRBBAIEREERENEE -
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HIGHLIGHTS
TEEZ

Stakeholder engagement BFhEERE

Maintaining close and timely communication with different groups of ETEHENZFNERFTERLETNER  —
stakeholders has always been the key to the efforts of the AFRC to better HEASHMBIIEEY - MBI T FETS o
understand the market.

During the reporting period, we engaged with stakeholders in 32 meetings, RIREHA - KB @325 &5 - Fadg &
seminars, events, conferences and interviews. Through an open and ) - E#E KM EZFNEE D - B BESH1TE
constructive dialogue with the accounting profession, we are able to  FIFIM R RIEE 2% - FFI8e5 T R IIEVERZh
understand their views and challenges. This will help shape the AFRC’s future R E$EIPkE - BB BN @ B4 T AR REE
policies and regulatory initiatives which are conducive to the sustainable — NESEEHE @ (REITEN A IFELE -
development of the profession.

Organised or participated in 1 7 events, meetings and seminars
Bmggm ' 1 5Ee  SFRREE

We maintained close relationships with our stakeholders through events, meetings and seminars. After we published reports
and guidance, we organized briefing seminars for the accounting profession to better communicate our regulatory findings
and expectations, enabling the industry practitioners to duly discharge their responsibilities in enhancing audit quality.

BIEREE  SRLMREEFNERSETHE - REMMERIESIR - RARSHTXEEREN G - URIFHH0ER
BPMEERRRDE  BENREABREALERTHERE  RRETER

tor's Duties: Guidelines on Selecting Auditors
petting Audit Fees

Climate-integrated Audits in Hong Kong
8 December 2023

i i st
AIFRC =%
Roundtable Discussion on Audit Quality and
Climate-integrated Audits in Hong Kong
14 December 2023
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HIGHLIGHTS
TEEH

1 0 speaking opportunities in conferences

BEEES

Our Chairman and the Management team delivered public speeches covering a wide range of topics relating to the quality
of the market, including financial reporting, the role of accountants, ESG and corporate governance. These speaking
engagements are important in reinforcing our role as the thought leader.

AREFMEEERERAMER BREAMSEZERNEZSRE  SEMBER SOAC  RE LaRERN
REEER - ZFERLDEMBRIUESBHFAENACEMEER -

Training on Joint Operations Aqsine;

Against Financial ;

ﬂ‘ﬁ‘!ﬂ!llsi}inﬂ i A ‘ 2 5

\ Lk E T XS

The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
FOUNDED 1997

5 interviews and press briefings

R R TEEAE

To get the public informed of our policy initiatives and enhance their understanding of our regulatory objectives and mission,

we had interviews with the media and industry organisations to address their enquiries relating to the development of the
accounting industry.

RELZATBHMOBERER  MREHRMEETRARREGN TH  HMIXRIERREZANEESR  OECMEES:
TTEERNEH °

Accounting and Financial
I R C Reporting Council
r AHEMBERR
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Governance Structure

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

EEER

=534480
EIREEE
1
Advisory Committee’ ,)) Board ((‘ Honoray Advisory Panel
CEES Y EER R EEME’
S a2 &
Sustainability and . Financial Reporting
Climate Action Committees? Process Review Panel® Review Panel'
Task Force? EEg? BEFERERE BRERSNESE
ASEERR
FURTENT{E4E2
I tiati Policy, Finance and Compensation Financial
I ) nves '%a fon Discipline Registration Corporate and Reporting
(;losr?:r::itt!t:r; Cornanliance Committee and Oversight Affairs Nomination Review
. plic REES Committee Committee Committee Committee*
sREAE i ELT BE-umR || || BERe R S
- EEZEE EBZEEE REZEEE BHZESE
Footnotes: fst -

1. Established under the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Ordinance (AFRCO) 1.

and their members are appointed by Government Officials designated under the

AFRCO.

Established by and their members appointed by the Board. 2.

3. Established in 2008 by the Chief Executive of HKSAR (CE) and its members are 3.
appointed by the CE to enhance the accountability of the AFRC.

4. Established under the AFRCO and their members are appointed from amongst the 4.
members of the Financial Reporting Review Panel.

RIBCEFT RMBERBDE) KL - ERKE B (EE
REIATSE R BIED) IENBA R B Ed -

N

HEZFRRY - KEREZREMT -
REBRAITTREITBE B R20085 /MK - KB R
THREEE - AN @M BRRE N -

R R SERBIED) KL - R E R ER
B R RE P IS -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
HisER

The Board
EER

Board Chairman

EERERE

ﬂ Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP
BEAHEL  REMEE
R4t

Board Members

EERKE
E Ms Miranda Kwok, JP a Mr Francis Siu
SPMB L L KFE#EHL MIERLE
a Dr Peter Wan, MH Mr And E .
FREEL  HEHET [ o incey Fung 295,
: - BEBLE  WERAEE
ﬂ Mr Eugene Fung, SC K4+
IBERLLE » BRAERM
a Mr Stephen Hung, MH a Dr James Lin
RREBERE  $EHE MIRFIEL
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
HBER

Board Members

EERHE
0 Ms Janey Lai (CEO) Mr Keith Lui
MEBEZL ((THER) 2 FHEAXEE
Mr Roger Best, MH, JP \ Mr Stephen Lee
) ponsnt  SEHT . ATHL ZRIE S
Ms Rosita Lee A Mr Edward Yuen
Z {3 2 £ BrEEx £ 4
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
HisER

Profile of Board Members

The Board

The Board is the highest governing body of the AFRC. Currently, the Board
comprises 14 members including the Chairman who is non-executive, 12
non-executive directors and 1 executive director.

Chairman =&

ESRRE[E

EER

EFRERYRBNRBEANE - BARI4ER
BAR BEERGET) - 128 TEER
EHTEE -

Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP
(from 2018-12-15; current appointment expires on 2025-09-30)

BEAMELT  REFEE > KFHL
(FB2018-12-15i8 ; {EHA#EF22025-09-30/E /)

Current offices and public service:

—  Chairman, AFRC

- Executive Director and Deputy Managing Director, COSCO SHIPPING
Ports Limited

- Independent Non-Executive Director of two listed companies in Hong
Kong

—  Chairman, Corruption Prevention Advisory Committee, ICAC

- Member, Advisory Committee on Corruption, ICAC

Past offices and public service:

- Non-Executive Director, SFC

- Chairman, Investor and Financial Education Council

—  Chairman, Hong Kong Institute of Directors (HKloD)

- Member, Financial Reporting Council

- Convenor-cum-member, Financial Reporting Review Panel

- Member, Standing Committee on Company Law Reform

- Member, Main Board and GEM Listing Committees, The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

—  Member, Auditing and Assurance Standards Committee, HKICPA

—  Member, Operations Review Committee, ICAC

Members K&

REBBRAM -

- BHMBIE

- PRASEBOARARNTEERESHE
gt

- WEEBLTARBLENTET

- BERREWHIEES
- BERREESHEE

BERKER AR
BEGIFNTES

- REENEBEHMHEZEESER

- BEREEREER

-  UBERBKE

- ﬁ?fﬁli#&*ﬁﬁ?al SEARKE

- REEHREERBKEERZLE

- DBEBAERSMBERATERRAIER LT
ZgeKka

- BEEHIASZEMAZFELE

- BRBABBEEESBWENESR

=

=

o

%

\

m5> W

>d/
\
’

m 18

Mr Roger Best, MH, JP
(from 2019-10-01; current appointment expires on 2025-09-30)

BONELLE  RERE > KFHL
(F12019-10-0178 5 fEHA# 7 2025-09-30/& )

Past offices and public service:

- Partner, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

- President, HKICPA

—  Chairman, Financial Reporting Standards Committee, HKICPA
- Member, IFRS Advisory Council

BERL R AR:
- B HERITEFMITARA
- AAGHMAgER

- AAGHIMAEMERELER
- BRMBREEAERZE

BEXTR

S
gk E
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Mr Andrew Fung, BBS, JP
(from 2023-10-01; current appointment expires on 2025-09-30)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
HBER

BEREE  HEFEE > K FHL
(F82023-10-01#8 ; EHA#E#2025-09-30/E )

Current offices:

- Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer, Henderson Land
Development Company Limited

- Non-Executive Director, Hong Kong and China Gas Limited.

- Professor, Practice (Finance), School of Accounting and Finance of the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University

- Adjunct Professor, Hang Seng University of Hong Kong

Past offices:
- Executive Director and Head, Global Banking & Markets, Hang Seng
Bank Limited

Mr Eugene Fung, SC
(from 2018-12-01; current appointment expires on 2025-09-30)

B

BEKEHEERRAPTEEREFENH
BRPERRBERARIFNTES
BRRTARBEH R HEREXEAHRE
(28

BFREERNSRIHE

BER

BAERITHITESRRETEREATHE
BLeE

BRETE LA » EIFR KR
(F12018-12-01# © {EHI#542025-09-30/E %)

Current offices, public service and professional affiliations:

- Barrister, private practice

- Recorder, High Court

- Chairman, Process Review Panel, Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority

- Chairman, Process Review Panel, Insurance Authority

- Chairman, Air Transport Licensing Authority

Past public service:
- Member, Law Reform Commission of Hong Kong

Mr Stephen Hung, MH
(from 2018-12-01; current appointment expires on 2025-09-30)

RERE  ABRAE2EXEE

FAABEERARED
BEERSRAE
ReREFERZEEXR

RREEEREFERZESTR
EERRBERE

BENHE :

BRLRNERBELE

BEE(S LA  REFHT
(FA2018-12-01iE : fEHI#%742025-09-30/& 7)

Current offices, public service and professional affiliations:

—  Chairman, Law Society’s Legal Education Committee

—  Chairman, Criminal Law and Procedure Committee

- Member, Board of Review, Film Censorship

- Member, Law Reform Commission

- Member, Professional Services Advancement Support Scheme Vetting
Committee

- Member, Duty Lawyer Service Council

- Member, Disciplinary Tribunal, Financial Dispute Resolution Centre

- Member, Standing Committee, Judicial Salaries and Conditions of
Service

- Member, Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal

— Adjunct Professor, Law, Hong Kong Shue Yan University

- Adjunct Professor, Law School, Beijing Normal University

- Visiting Professor, Faculty of International Law, China University of
Political Science and Law, Beijing

- Part-time tutor, Faculty of Law, University of Hong Kong

Past public service:
- President, Law Society of Hong Kong
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Ms Miranda Kwok, JP
(from 2018-12-01; current appointment expires on 2025-09-30)

R E 2+ - Kt
(FB2018-12-01#8 ; EHA#E#2025-09-30/E /)

Current offices and public service:

- Non-Executive Director, China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation
Limited

- Member, Council of City University of Hong Kong

—  Member, Process Review Panel, SFC

- Member, Risk Management Committee, Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (HKEX)

- Member, Air Transport Licensing Authority

-  Member, Standing Committee on Judicial Salaries and Condition of
Service

- Honorary Advisory Vice President, Hong Kong Institute of Bankers

Ms Janey Lai
(from 2023-10-12; current appointment expires on 2027-04-08)
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Current offices and professional affiliations:
—  CEO and Executive Director, AFRC

- Fellow member, HKICPA

- Fellow member, CPA Australia

Past offices and public service:
- Partner, two leading international accounting firms
- Member, Qualification and Examination Board, HKICPA

Ms Rosita Lee
(from 2018-12-01; current appointment expires on 2025-09-30)
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Current offices and public service:

- Director and Chief Executive Officer,
Management Limited

- Director, Hang Seng Qianhai Fund Management Company Limited

—  Chairman, Arbitration Panel, Securities and Futures (Leveraged Foreign
Exchange Trading) (Arbitration) Rules, SFC

- Member, Legal Aid Services Council

- Member, Products Advisory Committee, SFC

- Member, Beta Gamma Sigma (HKUST Chapter)

- Member, Hong Kong Academy of Finance

Hang Seng Investment

Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2023-24
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Mr Stephen Lee
(from 2019-10-01; current appointment expires on 2025-09-30)
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ZHBLE
(FB2019-10-01#8 ; {EHA#E#2025-09-30/E )

Current offices, public service and professional affiliations:

Independent Non-Executive Director of two companies

Fellow member, HKICPA

Fellow member, Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales (ICAEW)

Associate member, Institute of Directors

Associate member, Institute of Internal Auditors

Past offices and public service:

Partner-in-Charge, Risk Consulting practices in respect of Hong Kong,
Mainland and the Asia Pacific Region, KPMG

Independent Non-Executive Director of listed companies

Independent Non-Executive Director of statutory public bodies
President, The Institute of Internal Auditors Hong Kong

Dr James Lin
(from 2023-10-01; current appointment expires on 2025-09-30)
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Current offices and public service:

Senior Partner, Davis Polk & Wardwell

Chairman, Investor Compensation Company Limited

Non-Executive Director, SFC

Member, SFC (HKEC Listing) Appeals Committee

Member, Investor Compensation Fund Committee, SFC

Member, Securities Compensation Fund Committee, SFC

Director, Hong Kong Investment Corporation

Member, Process Review Panel, Insurance Authority

Member, Process Review Panel, Regulation of Mandatory Provident
Fund Intermediaries

Past public service:

Member, Appeal Panel (Housing)
Member, Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal

Mr Keith Lui
(from 2020-10-01; current appointment expires on 2024-09-30)
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Past offices and public service:

Executive Director, Supervision of Markets Division, SFC

Chairman, Investor Compensation Fund Committee, SFC

Chairman, Securities Compensation Fund Committee, SFC

Member, Advisory Committee, SFC

Member, Investment Committee, SFC

Member, SFC (HKEC Listing) Committee, SFC

Member, Statutory Risk Management Committee, HKEX and Clearing
Limited
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Mr Francis Siu
(from 2019-10-01; current appointment expires on 2025-09-30)

mEREE

(FB2019-10-01#8 ; {EHA#E#2025-09-30/E )

Current offices and professional affiliations:

- Independent Non-Executive Director of listed companies in Hong Kong
and Singapore

- Fellow member, HKICPA

- Fellow member, ICAEW

Past offices:

- Partner, KPMG Hong Kong

—  Senior Partner, Shanghai Office, KPMG

—  Senior Partner, Beijing Office KPMG

—  Senior Partner, Northern Region, KPMG China

Dr Peter Wan, MH
(from 2019-10-01; current appointment expires on 2025-09-30)
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Current public service and professional affiliations:

- Fellow member, HKICPA

- Fellow member, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA)
- Fellow member, HKloD

Past offices and public service:

- Partner, PricewaterhouseCoopers

- Independent Non-executive Director of a number of listed companies
—  Stewardship positions of several NGOs and service organisations

Mr Edward Yuen
(from 2021-10-01; Appointment expired on 2025-09-30)
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Current public service and professional affiliations:
- Member, Antiquities Advisory Board

- Member, Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal
- Member, Urban Renewal Authority Appeal Board
—  Associate member, HKICPA

Past offices:
- Area Finance Director, Pepsi-cola International
- CFO, Hsin Chong Construction Company Ltd
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Membership and attendance at Board meetings during the 12-month
period ended 31 March 2024 were as follows:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
HBER

BZE2024F3A31AW12@EAHHE  EE/KE
EEeRHERNT

Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP (Chairman) BREL  REFESE - KEat+GFE)
Mr Roger Best, MH, JP BOMEAE L - REEE - KP4t
Mr Andrew Fung, BBS, JP2 RERSE - WEHEE - KT t2
Mr Eugene Fung, SC IBRERB ST + BIRAZAD

Mr Marek Grabowski (CEO) ! BN (TTiBAE )

Mr Stephen Hung, MH RRIB(ESE - RERE

Ms Miranda Kwok, JP I 2L - KAt

Ms Janey Lai (Acting CEO)" FERBE L (FETHAAR)

Ms Rosita Lee 2 M2+

Mr Stephen Lee THRBLE

Dr James Lin?2 MRFIEL2

Mr Keith Lui B EE

Mr Francis Siu REREAE

Dr Peter Wan, MH FiREEL - KEHE

Mr Edward Yuen (=3

Number of meetings: 9 BEXE 9

The average attendance rate was 92%.

! As from 12 October 2023, Mr Marek Grabowski retired from the Board upon the expiry
of his term as CEO, and Ms Janey Lai as Acting CEO became a member of the Board.

2 Appointed on 1 October 2023.
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The Board
The Board oversees the Management to discharge the functions of the AFRC
efficiently and effectively to serve the public interest.

Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer, appointed by the Chief Executive of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (CE of the HKSAR), leads the staff
to manage the operations of the AFRC to ensure that the organisation’s
statutory functions are performed effectively.

Departments
The operations of the AFRC are carried out by six departments with clear
segregation of responsibilities.

Inspection Department

The Inspection Department (ISP) is responsible for carrying out inspections
with the objectives of monitoring and promoting audit quality. An inspection
in relation to a PIE auditor focuses on how a PIE auditor conducted
PIE engagements and on the effectiveness of the PIE auditor’s quality
management system to determine whether the applicable professional
standards and legal and regulatory requirements have been complied with. All
PIE auditors that undertake PIE engagements are subject to inspections.

An inspection in relation to a practice unit focuses on whether a practice unit
is acting in accordance with Professional Accountants Ordinance professional
standards. All practice units that undertake engagements other than PIE
engagements are subject to inspections.

An inspection in relation to compliance with anti-money laundering and
counter-terrorist financing requirements focuses on whether a practice unit
has complied with the Guidelines on Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-
Terrorist Financing for Professional Accountants (AML Guidelines) issued by
the HKICPA. The AML Guidelines form part of the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants.

Investigation and Compliance Department

The Investigation and Compliance Department (INC) is responsible for
carrying out the investigation and enquiry functions of the AFRC. It may
initiate an investigation and/or enquiry based on complaints from the public,
whistleblower reports, referrals from other regulators, internal referrals arising
from inspections of auditors or the AFRC’s own financial statements review
programme.
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Discipline Department

The Discipline Department (DIS) is responsible for carrying out the disciplinary
function of the AFRC. It will take appropriate and timely disciplinary actions in
cases of misconduct by imposing commensurate sanctions for the purposes
of deterrence, investor protection, maintaining market confidence in the
quality of financial reporting and audits, and upholding the standards of
conduct among regulatees.

Policy, Registration and Oversight Department

The Policy, Registration and Oversight Department (PRO) is responsible
for registration functions including the issuance of Practising Certificates,
registration of firm names and firms, corporate practices, local auditors as
PIE auditors, and recognition of overseas auditors as PIE auditors. Under
the AFRCO, it oversees the performance of the HKICPA in respect of their
statutory functions specified in the AFRCO (Specified Functions). In addition,
the department also conducts policy research that is conducive to enhancing
the quality of financial reporting and audit quality, and publishes guidance on
governance and other issues where appropriate.

Legal Department

The Legal Department (LEG) is responsible for providing legal advice to the
Board on all matters concerning the AFRC and for providing all departments
with vital legal support for the successful delivery of departmental initiatives
and the strategic development of the organisation as a whole.

Finance and Administration Department

The Finance and Administration Department (FNA) is responsible for
managing matters in relation to finance, budget, human resources, corporate
communication and general administration of the AFRC.

Practice of Corporate Governance

Internal Controls
The AFRC maintains an effective internal control system that includes a
clear organisational structure, well-defined levels of authority, and proper
segregation of duties.

The AFRC regularly reviews all its policies and guidelines relating to
personnel administration, procurement, authorisation of transactions, and the
safeguarding of its assets.

Specific forms were completed by Board members, committee members
and staff in respect of each case to ensure conflicts had been declared and
identified. Once declared, all papers issued reflect any such conflicts.
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Code of Conduct

Code of Conduct for Board Members

The Code of Conduct for Board Members sets out the basic standard of
conduct expected of all Board Members and the AFRC’s policy on matters
such as the acceptance of advantages, declarations of conflicts of interest,
confidentiality of information, misuse of information and use of public funds
by Board Members in connection with their official duties. All Board Members
are required to adhere to the Code of Conduct.

Code of Conduct for Staff Members

The Code of Conduct for Staff Members is in line with the Code of Conduct
for Board Members and the latest ICAC sample codes, and explains relevant
matters in greater detalil, in particular in relation to acceptance of advantages
by staff members.

AFRC staff members are required to adhere to our Code of Conduct when
carrying out any role on behalf of the AFRC. Our Code of Conduct specifies
standards to be followed in areas that may involve conflicts of interest,
confidentiality of information, personal investments and data protection. This
includes the need for staff members to make regular declarations of their own
and their spouses’ investments in listed securities, and to notify any changes
in their portfolio.

Communications with Stakeholders

The AFRC proactively communicates with stakeholders including the
accounting profession, our regulatory counterparts, and members of the
public.

We publish periodic regulatory reports, guidelines, market research, press
releases and quarterly reports to keep them informed of key regulatory issues,
up-to-date findings, the progress of our work and our latest developments.

We also fostered close collaborations with professional bodies by organising
briefings and webinars and sharing latest publications and news. The AFRC
also communicates with stakeholders via the AFRC website (www.afrc.org.hk)
and social media channels.

Accountability and Audit

The AFRC is subject to a strict audit process. The AFRC’s annual budget
must be endorsed by the Board. The Financial Secretary then reviews and
approves the AFRC’s annual estimates of income and expenditure.

The financial statements of the AFRC are audited by the Government’s
Director of Audit; annual reports are submitted to the Financial Secretary
and tabled at the Legislative Council. The AFRC attends a meeting of the
Legislative Council Panel on Financial Affairs to present the annual budget.
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Process Review Panel (PRP)

The AFRC has its work scrutinised by a PRP, the aim of which is to ensure
that individual cases have been dealt with consistently, and that all actions
and decisions taken are in line with internal procedures and guidelines. The
PRP issues an annual report containing the conclusions of its review, together
with suggestions for improvements, if any. Appointments to the PRP are
approved by the CE of the HKSAR.

Ombudsman

The AFRC is subject to indirect oversight by the Office of the Ombudsman
which has statutory powers to investigate alleged acts of maladministration.
The AFRC received one enquiry from the Ombudsman during the reporting
period.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

Inspection is key to our market monitoring activities designed to evaluate
audit quality. Through our monitoring activities, the ISP aims to communicate
with the market our expectations on the quality of financial reporting and audit
quality, monitor the audit quality delivered by auditors, and take appropriate
follow-up actions to drive quality improvement. These follow-up actions
include evaluating the remediation actions taken by practice units to address
the identified deficiencies and referring more significant deficiencies to our
INC for consideration of investigation and enforcement actions.

Our inspections evaluate the quality of a selection of audits completed by the
practice units, the effectiveness of their quality management systems, and
their compliance with the AML Guidelines.

Second inspection cycle

During the second three-year inspection cycle (2023-24 Cycle), the ISP
remains responsive and proactive in advancing regulatory strategies and
implementing enhancements and refinements to our inspection program and
approach. We continue to adopt the principles of proportionality and a risk-
based approach to identify audits of higher public interests for inspections.
This allows us to allocate resources effectively and efficiently for fulfilling our
regulatory responsibilities.

Following the further reform of the accounting profession in October 2022,
the ISP has progressively exercised the expanded power by conducting
inspections on non-PIE practice units for the first time. We have designed and
implemented a streamlined inspection program for the non-PIE practice units
to reflect our proportionality principle. This program ensures that audits of
listed and non-listed entities receive appropriate scrutiny while safeguarding
the public interest.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
EEREFER

We continued to take proactive steps to assist non-

PIE practice units to adapt to the new regulation under Video on Inspection
the further reform. In November 2023, we released P;fc:;r:lpj:fits
an explanatory video to enhance practice units’

understanding of our inspection approach and provide
them with guidance in preparing for their first inspections
with the AFRC. This video offered a comprehensive
overview of key aspects of an inspection and provided
clear guidance on the necessary preparatory work for
an inspection. The video has garnered over 1,500 views
within four months, underscoring its extensive reach and efficacy.
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Upholding quality of audit and financial reporting through robust and
effective inspections

Inspections play a crucial role in monitoring and improving the quality of
audits, thereby safeguarding the interests of investors and the broader
public. The ISP remains dedicated to promoting audit quality through our
rigorous and interactive inspection processes and the transparent disclosure
of our inspection findings. Our inspections are subject to an appropriate
level of oversight by the PRP and the Inspection Committee, which ensures
that our inspections comply with internal procedures, maintain fairness and
consistency, and make appropriate use of the regulatory powers.

BAREANNERMEFTNMBERNER

ERARBRIEABRHER I MR EEHERN
fER - BUHBEREERBEARBRHONE - &
KRR -EBRERNINBEEEREHANEES
2 URERRARNERERRKRE - REBER
BENET - RANERTERISHRNERF
BERZEGRERZBENEESE  BRER
THEFEABEFER  REQFM—% - X
EEREEEN -

Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2023-24 & KB IEERSE 2023-24F 3]



MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

Total number
of firms as at
31 December

2022
20224
12A31H
L=EIE e
Category of firms’ =RRES el EEE
General inspections ") — fig 25 8% ()
Category A AfE 6
Category B Bia 19
Category C CHa 20
Category D D#H 67
Category E Efa 2,725
2,837
Specific scope 5T I [E Z R W)
inspections () n/a
Stand-alone AML/CTF  BiTEAZBRBMH 7 FEL
compliance inspections Z£HE T SHEEE n/a
Follow-up inspections RELE n/a
Total @t 2,837

Note: General and specific scope inspections include evaluating the practice units’ quality
management systems and compliance with the AML Guidelines.

During the year, the ISP inspected 33 practice units and 54 listed entity
engagements under general and specific scope inspections (2022/23: 26
practice units and 55 listed entity engagements). The inspections of non-
PIE engagement were extended beyond the six Category A firms, covering
a total of 42 engagements across firms from Categories A to D. Additionally,
as part of our expanded regulatory power, we assessed compliance with the
AML Guidelines in 42 practice units for the first time. We also conducted 13
follow-up inspections on previously inspected engagements, including 11
engagements referred by the HKICPA under the transitional arrangements.

We implemented a reinforcement and pro-active approach in our second
inspection cycle to foster continuous improvement and accountability.
We increased the frequency and number of engagement inspections for
firms with unsatisfactory inspection results while reducing them for those
demonstrating improved audit quality. Furthermore, during the year, we
initiated special inspections of three firms with unsatisfactory past inspection
results while continuing to take up a substantial number of listed entity audits.
This approach aims to incentivise firms to address deficiencies in audit quality
and hold them accountable for their inspection outcomes.

7 Category A, B and C firms completed more than 100, between 10 and 100, and at least
one but less than 10 listed entity audits annually, respectively. Category D firms are non-
PIE practice units that completed more than 20 non-listed entity audits with more public
interest elements and/or more than 500 non-listed entity audits. Other practice units not in
Categories A to D are categorised as Category E firms.
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Number of Listed entity audit
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inspected in  engagements (non-PIE)
2023/24 inspected inspected
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Yet, the inspection result indicate there remains room for improvement
across the accounting profession. We are delighted to observe that Category
A firms, as a whole, have shown commendable dedication to cultivating a
culture of audit quality within their firms. Most of them have made significant
investments in their people, technology, and audit processes to address the
identified deficiencies from our inspections and enhance the quality of their
audits. Moreover, some of them have been proactive in reporting critical
incidents relating to audit quality or their systems of quality management,
which is a testament to their commitment to continuous quality improvement,
which also underscores the effectiveness of our inspection efforts.

Furthermore, with the staunch support of the SEB of the MoF, we achieved a
significant milestone in cross-border regulatory collaboration. During the year,
we obtained audit working papers of PIE auditors located on the Mainland
for inspection in Hong Kong. This achievement holds immense importance
as the capital markets of Hong Kong and the Mainland become increasingly
connected, and accounting firms continue to expand their practices across
borders. This development sends a strong message to the firms that their
audit engagements are subject to our quality review, irrespective of the
location where they maintain their audit working papers. It also reinforces our
ability to effectively discharge our statutory duties in safeguarding the public
interest.

Spearheading positive changes in attitudes and behaviours within the
profession and shaping a self-improvement culture

As part of our commitment to transparency and accountability, we publish
periodic reports to inform the public about the key findings from our
inspections. These reports provide guidance to practice units on areas that
require further improvement and establish clear expectations of the respective
roles and responsibilities of auditors, directors of listed entities, and their
audit committees regarding the quality of audits and financial reporting.
Furthermore, these reports offer valuable insights and information to investors
and other users of financial statements to help their decision-making.

In July 2023, the ISP published the Annual Inspection
Report which presented the key findings from our
inspections conducted in 2022. The report highlighted
common deficiencies in engagement performance
and quality control systems among practice units,
their common causes, and factors contributing
to improved audit quality in certain practice units.
Moreover, the report provided insights from our review
of the root causes analysis and remedial actions
proposed by practice units inspected in 2021. By
offering a comprehensive analysis of our inspection findings and actionable
recommendations, this report serves as an invaluable resource to practice
units, empowering them to enhance audit quality and, ultimately, strengthen
the integrity and reliability of financial reporting.

Annual Inspection
Report 2022
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Effective communication and clear articulation of our expectations are
crucial in promoting audit quality. In August and September 2023, we met
the leadership of several firms with higher regulatory priorities. These firms
included those that had not met our expectations regarding audit quality
improvement and those that had recently experienced rapid growth in their
audit business. Through these meetings, we had constructive discussions
with these firms on their business strategies and measures taken by them
in upholding and improving their audit quality, while providing them with
directional guidance and reiterating our expectations for their unwavering
commitment to quality. We emphasised the importance of not compromising
audit quality, even in pursuing operational goals such as growth.

Additionally, in September 2023, we organised a briefing session to
discuss the 2022 Annual Inspection Report with the Quality Control System
Responsible Persons (QCSRPs) from over 40 registered PIE auditors.
The session emphasised the importance of setting the right tone at the
top. It disseminated our expectations regarding the responsibilities and
accountability of the QCSRPs and firm leadership in driving commitments to
audit quality at all levels within their firms and ensuring the delivery of high-
quality audits.

These regulatory meetings and briefing sessions were important platforms
for conveying our expectations and fostering positive change in attitudes and
behaviours within the profession through open and constructive dialogues.

AIFRC -~

Briefing sess;
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PIE auditors: m
2022 Annual
Inspection Report
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The AFRC holds a briefing session to urge QCSRPs to enhance audit quality.

S RBTHN ERREREZHEABEAMREER -

Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2023-24 23K IEERD 2023-24F 1

41



42

MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
EEREFER

Offering valuable insights to support the sustainable development of
the profession

We not only flag common deficiencies identified from our inspections but also
share valuable insights into areas for market improvement, good practices,
and reminders in key risk areas through our publications “Audit Focus” and
“Inspection Insights”. These publications provide auditors with the intelligence
to continually enhance their audit quality. Moreover, they facilitate discussions
among auditors, management, and audit committees, enabling collaborative
efforts to address issues effectively.

In July 2023, the ISP issued an Audit Focus titled
“Effective Planning: The Key to High-Quality Audits”.
This publication emphasised the significance of effective
audit planning and highlighted its benefits beyond mere
compliance. It pinpointed key areas that require special
consideration during the audit planning phase and
provided valuable guidance to auditors, management,
and audit committees in fulfilling their roles and
responsibilities.

Effective Planning:
The Key to High-
Quality Audits

o

In November 2023, we published the 2023 Inspection
Insights, replacing our previous interim inspection
reports. This publication provided enhanced information

2023 Inspection
Insights

on our observations and insights
from our inspection work,
enabling firms to learn from these
observations and take immediate
action to improve audit quality in
preparation for the upcoming year-
end audits.

2023 Financial
Year-end Audit
Reminder

In December 2023, we released another Audit Focus

titled “2023 Financial Year-end Audit Reminder”,

highlighting red flags in key risk areas that might arise during the year-end
audits and providing auditors with guidance to address them.
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Remaining responsive to the prevailing practice of the profession,
which indicated risks to audit quality

In 2022, we established a task force to monitor and respond to the late
changes in auditor appointments. As part of the task force’s day-to-day work,
it inquired with the relevant practice units regarding the reasons for these
changes and their communications with the audit committees. Following the
issuance of open letters and heightened regulatory monitoring, we observed
a decline in the number of late auditor resignations and improvements in the
information disclosed by listed entities.

We collaborated closely with the PRO to provide valuable insights that were
utilised in preparing a publication and guidance notes published in September
2023.

Ensuring effective regulatory oversight by adopting an international
perspective and strengthening collaborations with local, Mainland
and overseas regulators

As an effective regulator in a dynamic market, we recognise the importance
of maintaining an international perspective in our inspections. Our
representatives proactively engage in meetings, forums, and seminars
organised by Mainland and overseas regulators throughout the year. These
valuable interactions allow us to discuss and exchange views on matters of
mutual interest in audit oversight.

In addition to our Mainland and international collaborations, we emphasise
local regulatory cooperation equally. We maintain regular dialogues with the
SFC to share inspection findings and exchange market intelligence related
to the audits of licensed corporations. This collaborative effort aims to
proactively address emerging risks within the licensed corporation sector and
promote effective regulatory oversight that safeguards the public interest.
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Investigation and enquiry serve as the foundation of the AFRC’s regulatory
and oversight framework. Effective from 1 October 2022, the AFRC’s powers
of investigation expanded to cover professional persons, i.e., certified public
accountants and practice units, in addition to our existing regulatory powers
in conducting investigations into possible misconduct by PIE auditors and
enquiries into non-compliance with accounting requirements by PIEs in their
financial reports.

Our investigative and enquiry functions are spearheaded by the INC. The INC
is dedicated to enhancing financial reporting and audit quality, delivering fair
and robust regulatory outcomes to deter misconduct and non-compliance,
promoting sustainable development of the accounting profession, and
thereby promoting public trust and confidence, safeguarding public interest
and bolstering Hong Kong’s position as a competitive international financial
centre.

Potential Fraudulent Financial Transactions and Reporting

Red flag
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iii.  Loan interest rate < market
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Complaints and other sources of investigations and enquiries
Financial reporting and audit quality underpin public confidence in the
reliability of financial statements of listed entities and other entities whose
financial stakeholders include the wider public. To protect the public interest,
INC collects intelligence of possible misconduct and accounting non-
compliance from sources including:

(@  Complaints from members of the public;

(b)  Whistleblower reports;

(c)  Referrals from regulators;

(d)  Referrals from professional bodies; and

(e)  Our Financial Statements Review Programme (FSRP).

The intelligence received from the public, whistleblowers, regulators and
professional bodies is vital for the INC to uncover and pinpoint potential
misconduct and non-compliance. We have launched an interactive platform
for the public, our regulatees, and whistleblowers to submit complaints and
report observed deficiencies. Dedicated channels are also established with
external and internal regulators to refer matters involving potential misconduct
and non-compliance, to promote market discipline and improve standards of
conduct.

The INC closely monitors market events, including media reports, short-
seller reports and market announcements that may be indicative of possible
deficiencies. As part of our market monitoring activities, we administered
the FSRP, a non-statutory initiative, with an aim to proactively monitor the
financial reporting and audit quality of PIEs. Financial statements of PIEs
are selected for review based on a range of risk-based criteria, which are
reviewed regularly in response to changes in the current economic outlook,
regulatory environment and common issues identified from our ongoing
investigations and enquiries.

The strategic amalgamation of proactive and reactive methodologies equips
us to effectively identify and detect possible misconduct and non-compliance,
and conduct investigations and enquiries in a timely manner, to safeguard the
quality of financial reporting and auditing.

Investigations and Enquiries

Conducting fair, transparent, and robust investigations and enquiries serves as
indispensable regulatory measures to safeguard public interest, discourage
misconduct, enhance public trust and confidence in Hong Kong’s financial
markets, and promote sustainable development of the accounting profession.
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Upon receipt of allegations of potential misconduct / non-compliance, we
carry out thorough assessment and consider the need for further action. An
investigation or enquiry is initiated after evaluating various factors such as
the severity of the issue, the benefit to public interest, and the sufficiency of
evidence to substantiate the allegations of misconduct or non-compliance.
Investigation findings where disciplinary action is required are referred to our
DIS. For enquiry cases where we conclude that there is non-compliance
with accounting requirements, we may require the listed entity concerned to
remove the non-compliance in the specified manner and within a specified
period.

As part of our strategies to carry out the investigation and enquiry function,
we enhance regulatory synergy through effective regulatory and enforcement
collaboration with local and Mainland regulators. We promote the exchange
of intelligence, joint investigation, or other forms of regulatory actions with
other local regulators and law enforcement agencies where appropriate.
Constructive dialogues with the SEB of the MoF are also established to obtain
access to audit working papers located in the Mainland to achieve cross-
border regulatory outcomes.

We believe the importance of communicating with the public on our findings
to educate the market on common irregularities and non-compliance,
and thereby promoting quality financial reporting and auditing. Regular
publications regarding observations and findings from our investigation
and enquiry work are released, to promote sustainable development of the
profession.

Joint statement
with SFC

Regulatory collaboration

The fiscal year 2023-24 has been marked by significant
achievements from regulatory synergies through our
effective regulatory and enforcement cooperation. In July
2023, we issued a landmark joint statement with the
SFC on common regulatory concerns on an observable
increase in cases of listed companies granting dubious
loans, as part of our enhanced collaboration in
combating misconduct by listed companies.

Tripartite joint
operation with the
SFC and ICAC

Further in October 2023, we conducted the first
tripartite joint operation with the SFC and the ICAC
against suspected misconduct and corporate fraud
concerning two Hong Kong-listed companies. The joint
operation involved a search of 16 premises, including
the offices of three PIE auditors. The collaborative efforts
manifested our determination to combat financial crime,
illicit activities and professional misconduct with other
financial regulators in order to restore public trust in the financial reporting
quality of listed entities and the audit quality of their auditors.
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Our collaborative partnership with other local regulators and law enforcement
agencies has also been strengthened through the sharing of our intelligence
and expertise. We exchanged valuable insights and experiences through
training and sharing sessions on the prevalent misconduct and unlawful
activities. By pooling our collective wisdom, we have fortified our capabilities
to navigate the complexities of today’s financial landscape, characterised by
rapid innovation and evolving risks.

During investigations and enquiries, we leveraged our collective efforts in
the detection of possible misconduct and non-compliance issues, and
exchanged intelligence and investigation findings with the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong (SEHK), SFC, ICAC and the Commercial Crime Bureau of
the Hong Kong Police Force under the framework of memorandums of
understanding. We also worked closely with the SEB of the MoF to retrieving
audit working papers located in the Mainland for investigations to achieve
cross-border regulatory outcomes.

We have also established swift collaborations with internal departments to
handle the possible misconduct and non-compliance identified during the
discharge of our respective statutory functions. Dedicated referral channels
have been set up to enable sharing of intelligence with the ISP, the PRO and
the DIS.

Operations Review for 2023-24

The fiscal year 2023-24 signifies the first full year of operations following the
further reform, which expanded our regulatory remit to cover professional
persons. This extension of our regulatory mandate has led to a significant
increase in complaints and referrals concerning professional persons,
surpassing those related to PIE auditors.

Amidst an increased number of cases, we adopted a proportionality approach
to process the complaints and referrals efficiently without compromising the
public interest. We handled a total of 261 complaints and referrals, including
71 brought forward and 190 received during the year. Through streamlining
our assessment process, we completed assessments for 197 pursuable
complaints and referral cases.

We continued to adopt a risk-based approach to carry out the FSRP, and
selected 130 financial statements for review. Seven investigations and two
enquiries were initiated from the FSRP reviews during the year.
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During the year, the INC handled 223 investigations, including 146
investigations brought forward from the previous period, and respectively
initiated 46 and 31 investigations concerning PIE auditors and professional
persons. We completed seven investigations, including five and two
investigations relating to PIE auditors and professional persons respectively.
Of the completed investigations, six cases have been referred to the DIS for
consideration of appropriate disciplinary actions.

In addition, the INC handled 31 enquiries brought forward from the previous
year and initiated 14 enquiries during the year. Of which, two cases are
being conducted by Financial Reporting Review Committee (FRRC), and the
remaining 43 are being conducted by the INC staff.

In order to improve the efficiency in handling the caseload, we have
streamlined our internal processes and updated our Operations Manual.
We have prioritised our resources in handling cases involving significant
public interest, high-profile cases and backlog cases, and this resulted in the
completion of four backlog cases during the year. We have also promoted
the importance of stakeholders’ cooperation and timely responses to our
requirements to expedite our evidence-gathering process for investigations
and enquiries. We will continue to put our very best effort to protect the public
interest by deterring misconduct and non-compliance through investigations
and enquiries.

We recognise the importance of educating the market on prevailing
irregularities and non-compliance, in upholding the quality of financial reporting
and promoting the healthy and sustainable development of the accounting
profession. In September 2023, we published our third Annual Investigation
and Compliance Report, which underscored the key observations and
findings related to misconduct and accounting non-compliance identified
from our investigations and enquiries. In addition, we have re-engineered our
2024-25 FSRP initiative, and added elements of “education” and “thought
leadership” to advocate good financial reporting practices and high-quality
financial reporting and auditing.

The PRP scrutinises our work in complaints handling, investigation and
enquiry functions, to ensure our actions taken on individual cases adhere
to our internal procedures. The PRP published the 2022 Annual Report in
September 2023 which, amongst others, included their conclusion on their
review of 10 cases handled by the investigation and enquiry function. The
PRP concluded that we had handled the cases in accordance with the
internal procedures.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

The PRO stands at the forefront in shaping policy and governance, establishing
the AFRC as a reputable regulatory authority. We fortify the credibility of the
accounting profession, safeguard stakeholder interests, and contribute to
Hong Kong’s position as an international financial centre. With dedication,
we regulate auditors through registration and licensing, maintaining high
standards of competence. Additionally, our oversight of the HKICPA ensures
accountability, promotes best practices, and upholds the trustworthiness of
accountants in Hong Kong.

Policy and Governance

Our objective is to promote the healthy development of the profession by
inspiring positive changes in market behaviour to enhance the quality of
financial reporting and audit. This journey begins with raising awareness,
followed by drawing attention and deepening understanding. Our approach
involves transforming research into evidence-based policies and guidance.
During the year, we published the following:

° A paper titled “AFRC Addresses Concerns Surrounding Auditor
Changes”

The AFRC closely monitors late auditor resignations

and their impact on audit quality. Concerns persisted  AFRC Addresses
regarding insufficient planning and resources by Concerns
. . . ) Surrounding
incoming auditors, and the reluctance of listed Auditor Changes

companies to address critical audit issues leading to
auditor resignations. To enhance transparency, the
AFRC published the paper to provide an update on the
progress made and to highlight its ongoing initiatives
aimed at addressing the issues.

Most of the total growth in headcount can be attributed to
the increase in service delivery centre staff
Headcount, number of vacancles, and vacanc y rate by grade
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o “Guidance Notes on Change of Auditors”

The guidance note is specifically tailored to address
the needs of different parties involved in the change of
auditors process. By clearly articulating the expectations
of PIE auditors and audit committees when managing
auditor changes, it aims to ensure a smooth transition
and maintain integrity of the audit process.

Guidance Notes on
Change of Auditors

PRO has observed a positive change in the quality of
these announcements since the issuance of the guidance note. Generic
statements, such as “disagreement over audit fees” or “corporate governance
considerations”, are now being replaced with more informative and specific
explanations. The AFRC is encouraged to see that our guidance note is being
referred in these announcements, demonstrating its influence in shaping
what have been referenced in the announcement. We will continue to monitor
industry practices.

° “Report on the Analysis of the Public Interest Entity Audit
Market in Hong Kong”

The report shows that the industry has been
experiencing high vacancy and attrition rates, particularly
at junior grades. This presents challenges to the industry
and may jeopardise PIE auditors’ efforts to establish
stable audit teams and uphold audit quality.

Report on the
Analysis of the
Public Interest Entity
Audit Market in
Hong Kong

The report examines various factors that can impact
audit quality, such as gender equality, the potential
future supply of audit professionals, level of supervision,
workload, technology deployment, and the provision of
continuing professional development training.

Through the report, the AFRC aims to foster constructive dialogue and
collaboration between key stakeholders, including PIE auditors and audit
committees, with the view to promoting the sustainable development of the
PIE audit market in Hong Kong.

° An article titled “Continuing Professional Development as a Key
to Improving Audit Quality in Hong Kong”

This thought leadership piece emphasizes the AFRC’s expectations regarding
the investment in training and support from top management in audit firms,
promoting lifelong learning among professional staff.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

The article highlights the vital connection between CPD
and audit quality, considering the evolving landscape
of the audit profession, and the necessity for auditors
to acquire new skKills. It points out the significance of
adapting to new technologies like artificial intelligence,
the growing demand for ESG and climate expertise,
and the continual changes in accounting and auditing
standards. By prioritising CPD as a strategic element in
delivering high-quality audits and talent management,
audit firms can also capitalize on significant business
opportunities.

Continuing
Professional
Development as a
Key to Improving
Audit Quality in
Hong Kong

Stakeholder Engagement

Effective stakeholder engagement is an integral part of our policy development
and implementation. It fosters two-way communication, collaboration, and
trust, which are essential elements in establishing the AFRC as a credible
and influential regulator and thought leader. Throughout the year, PRO
has conducted multiple stakeholder engagements with diverse groups of
stakeholders, with over 11,700 participants, including the following:

° Briefing seminars to promote our publications — We conducted
eight briefing seminars to promote the key messages from our
publications. These seminars covered the reports, including “2023
Survey Report on the Implementation of Guidelines for Effective Audit
Committees — Selection, Appointment and Reappointment of Auditors”
and “Audit fees paid by listed companies in Hong Kong in 2020/2021”.

These seminars were delivered to the members of the professional bodies,
including The Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director Association
(HKINEDA), the HKIloD, the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute, and
the CPA Australia.

The primary focus of these seminars was to emphasize the importance of
auditor selection and ensuring appropriate audit fees. Over 1,700 participants
attended these sessions, including directors, audit committee members,
management of listed entities, and auditors. The seminars provided valuable
insights to the attendees.

° Briefing sessions with the SFC and the SEHK - To foster
collaboration with other regulators, we conducted two briefing sessions
with the SFC and the SEHK. These sessions provided a platform for
open dialogue and knowledge-sharing with approximately 200 staff
members from both regulatory bodies.
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During the sessions, we expressed our concerns regarding auditor
appointments and the setting of audit fees in Hong Kong. We shared the
recent inspection results, highlighting red flags related to late changes
of auditors, and emphasized the importance of addressing the issue of
subpar audits overshadowing high-quality ones. Furthermore, we identified
opportunities for seamless collaboration among the three regulators to
enhance audit quality. Through these briefing sessions, we fostered a
collaborative environment, enabling regulatory bodies to come together to
discuss pertinent issues and explore potential solutions.
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The AFRC presents the topic of “Recent concerns on auditor appointments and setting of audit fees” to the
HKEX in September 2023.
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o Panel Discussion on Fraud in Financial Statements — The AFRC
actively addresses financial statement fraud by raising stakeholder
awareness and sharing valuable insights with the profession. In line with
this commitment, we participated in a panel discussion titled “Exploring
Ethical Practices — Fraud in Financial Statements,” hosted by the
ACCA.

By sharing case studies and discussing ethical practices with approximately
370 ACCA members, we aimed to enhance the understanding of potential
risks and equip professionals with the knowledge to identify and prevent
financial statement fraud. We also strive to create a collaborative environment
that promotes best practices and fosters a stronger ethical foundation within
the accounting profession.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

CPD carnival on “Advancing Hong Kong as a better international
financial centre” — In November 2023, the AFRC took part in the
“2023 CPD Carnival for Accountants” organized by the Society of
Chinese Accountants and Auditors, where we delivered a presentation
to raise awareness and deepen understanding of the crucial link
between financial reporting and audit quality. We also highlighted how
compliance with regulatory and professional requirements plays a
pivotal role in enhancing the overall quality of financial reporting and
auditing practices.

Soliciting views at roundtable discussions with institutional
investors, audit committee members and PIE auditors — The
AFRC actively engages with stakeholders and thought leaders to gather
their insights and address their concerns. In December 2023, we
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organized three roundtable discussions, bringing together institutional
investors, audit committee members, and PIE auditors.
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These discussions revolved around two central themes: audit quality and
climate-integrated audits. Participants shared their valuable perspectives on
audit quality, exploring the potential roles of auditors and audit committees in
enhancing it.
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By soliciting views and engaging in meaningful discussions with institutional
investors, audit committee members, and PIE auditors, we gain a
comprehensive understanding of stakeholders’ perspectives and concerns.
This valuable feedback enables us to formulate strategies and initiatives that
address the evolving needs of the financial reporting and auditing landscape
in Hong Kong.

Dr Kelvin Wong, Chairman of the AFRC, delivers his opening speech at the roundtable discussion with Audit
Committee members.
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° Meetings with key stakeholders — Engaging with key stakeholders is
essential for the AFRC to stay at the forefront of industry developments
and act as a forward-looking thought leader. During the year, we met
with representatives from the SEB of the PRC’s MoF, International
Federation of Accountants, PCAOB, ACCA, the Institute of Singapore
Chartered Accountants, the Chartered Accountants Australia and New
Zealand, the General Union of Hong Kong Accounting Professionals
and Staff. Through open and candid dialogues, we not only gain
valuable insights into current market conditions but also explore
collaboration opportunities and ways in advancing the profession,
including small and medium practitioners.

We address regulatory frameworks, compliance requirements, and best
practices to ensure the integrity and transparency of financial reporting.

We explore initiatives and strategies to encourage the next generation
to pursue careers in the industry. We also examine ways to enhance the
profession’s capabilities, promote innovation, and adapt to evolving market
needs. This includes leveraging technology and digital transformation to
improve efficiency and effectiveness in financial reporting and auditing
processes.

Through these discussions and engagements, the AFRC collaborates with
stakeholders to shape the future of the accounting profession, address
emerging challenges, and promote the highest standards of professionalism,
integrity, and quality in financial reporting and auditing.

° Briefing video on PIE Auditor Levy — To meet the preferences of
stakeholders who seek concise information, the AFRC has created a
short and informative video on the PIE Auditor levy.

By offering this concise and visually engaging format, the AFRC aims to assist
PIE auditors in better comprehending the levy collection requirements and
improving the accuracy of their submissions.

In its commitment to effective stakeholder engagement, the AFRC recognizes
the importance of utilising user-friendly and easily accessible methods.
Leveraging multimedia tools like videos allows for efficient communication and
facilitates a stronger connection between the AFRC and its stakeholders.
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Registration and Licensing

The AFRC commenced the collection of application fees and renewal fees for
the issuance of practising certificates, registration of CPA firms and corporate
practices from 1 October 2023, upon expiry of the one-year exemption
period. The process of fee collection went smoothly due to early stakeholder
engagement.

As a gatekeeper to the audit profession, our primary goal is to ensure the
high-quality and long-term sustainable development of the accounting
profession. To achieve this, we have implemented a robust registration
process that includes stringent vetting procedures.

With a commitment to maintaining a robust registration process, we have
refused applications from individuals who failed to meet the fit and proper
or other registration requirements. Additionally, we have also carefully
considered imposing conditions on applicants with quality issues, ensuring
the highest standards of practice.

During the year, we have approved the following number of applications:

Registration of practice units
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During the 2024 renewal process, the AFRC met with those registered PIE
auditors without any PIE engagements for a considerable period. These
constructive dialogues provided valuable insights into the auditors’ operations
and business plans. The AFRC also communicated its expectations to these
auditors, stressing the importance of having an effective quality management
system and adequate resources and capabilities before accepting any PIE
engagements. To share these expectations with other PIE auditors who are
about to embark on the journey of conducting PIE audits, the AFRC will issue
a guideline for PIE auditors on undertaking PIE engagements.

In the past year, we went through the second registration and renewal cycle
under the new regime, during which we actively explored avenues to enhance
the efficiency and effectiveness of our registration function.

Drawing from the lessons learned in the first registration and renewal cycle
that commenced on 1 October 2022, we conducted a comprehensive review
of our application and assessment procedures. By streamlining processes
and introducing automation, we re-engineered the registration process. As
a result, the second registration and renewal cycle was implemented more
efficiently, eliminating the need for additional manpower.

Oversight

As the sole statutory accountancy body in Hong Kong, the HKICPA holds an
important role in upholding the quality of the accounting profession. Its role
encompasses setting professional standards, shaping the future generation
of the accounting profession, providing relevant and high-quality training to its
membership of over 47,000 professionals, and addressing the pressing issues
of climate change and sustainability within the accounting field in Hong Kong.

The AFRC oversees the HKICPA'’s performance of the statutory functions,
including the registration of certified public accountants (CPAs), setting
standards on professional ethics, and accounting, auditing and assurance
practices for CPAs; providing training for CPAs; and setting CPD
requirements for CPAs.
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The AFRC strives to offer guidance and recommendations to the HKICPA,
ensuring its accountability, integrity and effectiveness in fulfilling its statutory
responsibilities. The AFRC aims at the ultimate objectives of enhancing the
quality of financial reporting and audit in Hong Kong, and fulfilling the duty of
promoting the healthy development of the accounting profession. The AFRC
also seeks to ensure that the HKICPA provides relevant CPD and support to
not only its members in practice, but also those in business, as the majority of
the 47,000-plus CPAs work in the commercial field, many of which are small
and medium enterprises.

With this in mind, we finished the fourth annual oversight
assessment, and published the 2023 oversight report
with our recommendations to the HKICPA in November
2023. The report highlights eleven findings and offers
a set of observations to drive improvement within the
HKICPA. We have observed that the HKICPA has taken
actions to address these findings.

2023 Oversight
Report on HKICPA’s
Performance of the
Specified Functions

In pursuit of a consistent oversight approach, we
have formulated and published a mission statement in
December 2023 that defines the purpose, principles
and approach of the oversight function. In addition, having completed the
first oversight assessment under the new regime, the AFRC has further
enhanced the oversight approach for improved effectiveness in fulfilling our
responsibilities.

To this end, the oversight assessment of 2024 has commenced, and we have
actively engaged in regular dialogue with the HKICPA management to ensure
smooth coordination and effective planning.
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Discipline

What we do and why

The DIS is responsible for carrying out the disciplinary function of the AFRC.
We take timely and appropriate disciplinary action in cases of misconduct for
the purposes of deterrence, investor protection, upholding proper standards
of conduct, and promoting public confidence in the quality of financial
reporting and audits.

Following the further regulatory reform in 2022, we are empowered to
exercise disciplinary powers over the entire accounting profession, namely,
PIE auditors, registered responsible persons and professional persons (i.e.,
CPAs and practice units). This may involve the imposition of a range of
different sanctions, separately or in combination, including issuing reprimands,
imposing pecuniary penalties, revoking or suspending registration, and (where
applicable) directing remedial actions to be taken. However, in all cases,
DIS seeks to impose sanctions which are proportionate to the misconduct
in order to achieve our regulatory objectives, and to provide application
guidance of our regulatory principles to the profession in an open and
transparent manner.

We take a principle-based approach to disciplinary action, guided by our
policies and procedures. We strive to implement a disciplinary regime that
strikes an appropriate balance between fairness, impartiality and transparency
on one hand and the need to ensure efficiency and effectiveness on the other
hand.
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Statistics highlight R BERE
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Our progress and achievements

Combating misconduct through enforcement

In November 2022, the DIS commenced the handling of disciplinary cases.
Over the past year, DIS exercised its full spectrum of disciplinary powers
in accordance with the AFRC’s published sanctioning guidelines. Among
the five cases completed during the 2023-24 reporting period, four were
concluded with disciplinary actions and one with Compliance Advice Letters.

These cases concerned a wide variety of professional work, ranging from
audits of listed entities and private companies to reporting on compliance
of regulatory requirements in respect of solicitors’ accounts. The cases
also covered various types of regulatees, including audit firms, engagement
partners, engagement quality control reviewers and CPAs. Through the four
disciplinary cases published during the reporting period, we set the AFRC’s
expectations on the proper standard of conduct and provided application
guidance on a variety of misconduct identified:
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Date Misconduct Sanctions Press Release
B KETH B2 FELRK

29 Aug 2023 Failure to obtain sufficient appropriate Reprimanded, fined totalling HK$700,000
audit evidence and exercise professional and practising certificate cancelled for 12
skepticism in the audit of a listed entity months

202368 H29A R M EBETENNREENTYE THAEE - EUEIFA 700,000/ 7T R E
ENEAERITEREEERAE JHEEEE 1208 A

24 Nov 2023 Blindly signing off auditor’s reports without ~ Reprimanded, fined HK$300,000 and
conducting any audit work or only conducted permanent non-issuance of practising
minimal work and providing false and/ certificate
or misleading information in response to
regulatory requests

202311 240 IRBEITHAE TIESEETIE TN TUEE - BEEASIFK300,0007E 7T KK AT
BERTEEEEZHMRE  AREYHEE FERNEES
ERIBHER KR, HREE

28 Nov 2023 Failure to comply with the AFRC’s statutory ~ Reprimanded and fined HK$80,000
requirement (did not complete corrective
actions within specified timeframes)

202311 H28R RELETRUBELAETZRKNIERS  TUUER KELASIFE0,000/ 7T
IR PR A R SR A EF T D)

12 Mar 2024 Failure to conduct proper procedures in Reprimanded and fined totalling HK$100,000
determining a law firm’s compliance with the
Solicitors” Accounts Rules

202453 H120 REFUTHEESEFUREEMEBIIETE  TUUEE REE KA $£100,0008 7T

AR B A5 A1

Notably, in a case where a CPA had committed multiple serious acts of
misconduct, including blindly signing off auditor’s reports without performing
any audit work, we made an order to permanently prevent him from
practising as a CPA in order to protect the public interest. Blindly signing off
audit reports is alarming conduct that amounts to serious dereliction of duty
of a professional accountant, and raises potential concerns as to whether
the signing auditor was partnering with bogus accountants to undermine the
integrity of the profession.

By holding members of the profession accountable for their misconduct and
sending a strong deterrent message through these cases, the DIS has set
the tone for robust enforcement and emphasised our commitment to driving
positive behavioural changes and improvements in audit quality.
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Driving effective enforcement outcomes through efficient processes
The DIS is committed to driving effective enforcement outcomes through
efficient processes. As such, we have made full use of our regulatory toolkit
when taking enforcement action to ensure fair and proportionate outcomes
and raise the standards of conduct of the profession.

° Timely Resolution of Cases

The AFRC recognises and values cooperation by regulatees in its investigation
and disciplinary actions, as it assists the AFRC to achieve its regulatory
objectives whilst fostering a culture of accountability and self-improvement
amongst its regulatees, and the timely conclusion of cases will in turn benefit
the regulatees concerned and facilitate the efficient use of the AFRC’s
manpower and resources. In a case where the regulatee cooperated with the
AFRC through its early admission of wrongdoing and settlement initiation, we
resolved the disciplinary action through settlement, thereby demonstrating
how the AFRC’s Guidance Note on Cooperation applies in practice, and
providing an example to encourage regulatees to cooperate proactively in the
future.

o Improving Standard of Compliance

We have issued Compliance Advice Letters to convey our regulatory concerns
and raise the standard of compliance in the future. Compliance Advice
Letters are alternatives to formal disciplinary action and a proportionate
response to cases where the conduct of regulatees falls below the expected
standards of conduct but either the conduct itself is not sufficiently serious
or there is insufficient evidence to pursue enforcement actions. It facilitates
the regulatees’ understanding of the compliance requirements, enables the
regulatees to take timely remedial actions to address the issues identified and
promotes a proactive compliance culture within the regulatees.

o Providing Guidance

Through the four disciplinary cases we have published during the reporting
period, we have demonstrated the efficient and effective discharge of the
disciplinary function in a transparent manner. By publishing press releases
and statements of disciplinary action in respect of those cases, we have
provided the profession with guidance on the application of our regulatory
principles and enhanced understanding of our disciplinary function.
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The primary responsibility of the LEG is to advise the Board on all legal
and ethical related matters, covering not only regulatory functions but also
corporate governance and compliance with laws and regulations.

In discharging this responsibility in the reporting period, we endeavoured
to facilitate the pursuit by the AFRC of its main regulatory objectives of (1)
effective and efficient regulation to ensure audit quality; and (2) professional
development to ensure the integrity and sustainable development of the
accounting profession in Hong Kong. The LEG supported the AFRC’s
functional departments by providing legal advice and contributing to
policy decisions. The giving of such advice and contribution was guided
by the above-mentioned strategic goals and informed by the principle
of proportionality and risk-based approach adopted by our functional
departments.

The LEG has worked closely with the Board and other functional departments
to understand their strategic and operational needs in order to identify
and manage any legal risks, and provided day-to-day legal support for the
achievement of their departmental objectives and the AFRC’s overall strategic
goals.
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Our Role as Legal Adviser

Following the commencement of the further reform of the regulatory regime
of the accounting profession on 1 October 2022, the reporting period was
the first full year of operation of the new regulatory framework. The integration
of the regulatory functions in respect of both public interest entity auditors
and the accounting profession into the general remit of the AFRC as the
independent regulator created benefits of synergy and efficiency. At the same
time, our expanded functions under the relevant provisions of the AFRCO
also provided fertile ground for legal issues in our operations requiring LEG’s
advice or assistance, and for inter-departmental collaborative opportunities
calling for LEG’s contribution.

During the reporting period, many of our functional departments’ initiatives
were undertaken with a view to providing guidance to the profession not only
for the purpose of compliance but more importantly, for the better long-term
development of the profession. Where appropriate, in addition to providing
legal advice, LEG also took part in the review of draft guidance documents.

The integration of new functions in respect of the accounting profession
under the AFRCO was an important step towards a more halistic approach
to the regulation and further development of the profession. The issues and
challenges encountered by our functional departments in the application of
the AFRCO have also informed LEG’s work in the review of the AFRCO as
one of the means for achieving this holistic effective regulation. LEG has also
begun a comparative study of the audit regulatory legal frameworks of other
jurisdictions for the purpose of considering proposals and solutions for further
enhancing the current regulatory regime.

Corporate Governance

The LEG has been providing support to the Advisory Committee since its
establishment under the AFRCO. The Committee consists of representatives of
different stakeholder sectors, including the accounting profession, in addition
to the Chairman and CEO of the AFRC. It serves the important function of
providing advice to the AFRC on matters of policy regarding its functions and
regulatory objectives. In our work in support of the Committee, LEG plays the
role of providing members with an understanding of the AFRC’s regulatory
objectives and in providing members’ advice and feedback to our functional
departments to better inform our work in the regulation and development of
the profession.

During the reporting period, we continued our role in the management
of conflict of interest to ensure the impartiality and independence of our
decisions. The digitisation of our declaration form has also been underway as
part of the AFRC’s new case management system.

BN EFERE

EMkSZeERNAE

et XEEHIEE PR EN2022F10A1
HFRER REPANETEREENE —ET
BEE - BEMARNRERZEMA T
NEEREEAEEABYEERBENEH BN
BEEEREN - EERHRERERSE - R
(e RV BERBIEG) T ERAM B2
&R - I AR P EER R A EER
BUARFELRMELERNIFMEERE 2
WP o

R EA - RAINBEBPIRBRNZ BEES
EREEATRHES  HENTERAR &
EEMNERIXATEHNRAER - REER
M REBOERERIN  EZRE A2 RERE
BY R o

B G RMBERBGD) T &5 F XA
ERHENERASAEERE - THREXE
HEBER—F - RFINBEE PN EA (S LM
BEE 5/ R 1) BB 21 O [T B e BB - TR AR R BRI
R B M BERBEIDEREREZEAEN
EEATRAZ—NTIFRHEHZ2E - ZRBIAFHGS
Hi AAE SR B EEARERETHLR
BR9E - AZ B~ INRBRITEE P E MRS R
FRORTIER -

BisER

BRAAZR BERIIAR AR —ERE(EF &
MIEEBRBIEP) MAAZBEGREIIE - ZZ8
SHRATRAAR (BREHAER)NFNERE
AR BV RIERITHARMERS - FRE
BemERREAN AR BB REEER
BEOBRREENEVRERER - RXEZZE
ENTIET  ERHMHNBEREKE THRENR
MEE B BRARABESFIREKENERE IR
BER  UEIFEERMESEEERERS
EEIIE

RBERRN - BRAEEEEFEER - BRAK
MAFHERBYYE - FREMBEHEREER
FE—En - WA RR BT TEIMEETT
o

Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2023-24 &%tk ISERE 2023-24F 3R

63



64

MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
EEREFER

The LEG continued to work with the FNA over our internal governance,
including staff and employment related matters and the AFRC’s procurement
policy and processes. In particular, we revised our standard terms of contract
in our tender documentation to incorporate considerations of public interest
including national security. Working with our [T Division, we have also begun
to review our information governance and IT and data security with a view
to updating and enhancing our information and IT infrastructure both at the
policy and implementation level, under the Governance of Information System
project.

Regulatory Collaboration

The reporting period saw the signing of a new memorandum of understanding
by the AFRC with the Monetary Authority in August 2023, under which the
parties agree to strengthen collaboration through case referrals, mutual
assistance, capacity building and exchange of information. The agreement will
facilitate the AFRC’s regulatory efforts, in performing its expanded functions
under the further reform, in upholding the quality of financial reporting, auditing
and the accounting profession’s work in relation to the banking sector.

The LEG continued to provide strategic legal support to our inspection team
at ISP in its collaboration with the Mainland authorities and the US PCAOB
over the latter’s inspections in Hong Kong.
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AIFRC &

Memorandum of Understanding
Signing Ceremony

17 August 2023

The AFRC signs a new MoU with the HKMA on 17 August 2023 to strengthen collaboration.
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Corporate Functions

What we do and why

Our corporate functions are crucial in facilitating seamless operations and
achieving strategic goals through the security, quality control, and effective
allocation of our core resources — facilities, people, information technology
and financial resources. Furthermore, we enhance the level of involvement of
our stakeholders by ensuring that our corporate communications and events
are executed efficiently.

Our progress and achievements

The successful establishment and implementation of appropriate policies
and procedures are essential to achieving the desired outcomes from our
corporate functions. During the reporting period, our corporate functions
continued to place significant emphasis on reviewing our policies and
procedures.

People

We determine forthcoming needs to ensure that the right people are in place
to accomplish strategic goals. We attract and select the most competent
talents in the industry and assure their commitment through effective
leadership and well-defined objectives. Our people, who possess a vast array
of expertise and extensive experience, adhere to a “One Team One Culture”
in order to diligently and effectively carry out their responsibilities.

Furthermore, the AFRC has been endeavouring to incorporate pertinent
training in order to cultivate our people and regularly measure their
performance through an effective performance evaluation framework, uplifting
our professionalism, competitiveness, and perseverance.

Finance

We have exercised stringent expenditure control, maintained a strict budget
and strategically deployed our available resources in exercising the regulatory
functions of the AFRC.
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Information Technology

As our Departments collaborate seamlessly to handle cases, we are
enhancing IT infrastructure to increase the capabilities and efficiency of case
management so as to deliver efficient and effective regulatory outcomes.
Software applications are also developed to assist our staff in raising
efficiency.

The information that the AFRC is handling is of utmost confidentiality relating
to the public interest. Therefore, we proactively responded to the increasing
trend of cyberattacks and data breaches by strengthening our cyber security
framework, in order to protect data and privacy.

Corporate Communications

To keep the public abreast of our regulatory initiatives and latest developments,
we engage proactively with our stakeholders and media through diversified
channels of communication.

Though the AFRC is still a relatively young regulator, the public awareness
of the AFRC keeps rising during the year as a result of our communication
efforts. This is reflected in our surging regulatory caseloads and the feedback
from the market based on our initiatives.

Enhancing public understanding

To ensure the public understands our regulatory principles and expectations,
we engage with stakeholders in the format of seminars, briefing sessions and
speaking opportunities. Presentation slides of activities are readily available
on our website as a source of reference for the public and the accounting
profession.

We also maintain close relationships with the media. During the year, we
published an annual report, four issues of quarterly reports and 38 press
releases. We also enhance the public understanding of our work and roles
through conducting media interviews.

We also explore innovative and interactive ways including in the format of
video to make our messages more succinct and user-friendly, in order to

enhance our visibility to the market.

Press releases
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Our people

As professionals working at a regulatory authority, all of us aspire to
constantly drive for self-improvement. We are driven by a meaningful purpose
to nurture and promote the success of the accounting profession.

As we work to achieve our mission, our work at the AFRC can be both
challenging yet fulfilling. We have built an agile and engaged workforce by
investing in our people and by ensuring our staff feel purposeful and valued.

This year, we organised 25 in-house Learn and Share sessions (LENS)
covering topics relating to Safeguarding National Security Bill and China’s
2024 Two Sessions, enabling our staff to better understand market
developments. We also further enhanced their professional knowledge by
inviting external experts to share their insights. By proactively attending the
training sessions offered by other regulators, our staff have also benefitted
from the experiences and knowledge of other regulators.
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We invest in our staff through through promoting a learn and share culture
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Our Honorary Adviser, Prof
Zabihollah Rezaee gives
a lecture to our staff to
strengthen their professional
knowledge.
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Prof Paul Davies shares his
invaluable insights to the
AFRC staff on corporate law.
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We actively participate in
the training courses offered
by other organisations.
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We create a joyful work culture where our staff feel they are part of a team

BREEBEN T  BEIRZIMMAREARN—8

AFRC{Annual Dinner 2023
i g 4 -

We organise staff activities and participate in industry event to enhance the sense of belonging of our staff.
BMBTEDEPWRETEES - MEMETHARBHNER -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT

Audit Commission
The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council

Opinion

| have audited the financial statements of the Accounting and Financial
Reporting Council set out on pages 72 to 100, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council as at 31 March
2024, and of its results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with section 18(2) of the Accounting
and Financial Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap. 588).

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with section 19(1) of the Accounting and
Financial Reporting Council Ordinance and the Audit Commission auditing
standards. My responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of my report. | am independent of the Accounting and Financial Reporting
Council in accordance with those standards, and | have fulfilled my other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with those standards. | believe that the
audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my opinion.

Other information

The Accounting and Financial Reporting Council is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information included in
the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council’s 2024 Annual Report, other
than the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, | am required to report that
fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Accounting and Financial

Reporting Council for the financial statements

The Accounting and Financial Reporting Council is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and section
18(2) of the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Accounting and Financial Reporting
Council is responsible for assessing its ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting.

The Accounting and Financial Reporting Council is assisted by its Finance and
Corporate Affairs Committee in discharging its responsibilities for overseeing
the financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

financial statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with the Audit Commission auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Audit Commission auditing
standards, | exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control;
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT

—  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council’s internal control;

—  evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council;

- conclude on the appropriateness of the Accounting and Financial
Reporting Council’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
| am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Accounting and Financial
Reporting Council to cease to continue as a going concern; and

- evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that | identify
during my audit.

Terry Mok Audit Commission

Assistant Director of Audit 6th Floor, High Block

for Director of Audit Queensway Government Offices
66 Queensway

13 June 2024 Hong Kong
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE R

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME e PNE
For the year ended 31 March 2024 HE2024F3 /8318 HFE

(2RNAETTIIR)

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

72

The notes on pages 76 to 100 form part of these financial statements.

Note
M E 2024 2023
Income [ ON
Levy income HBRA 4 126,830,665 150,649,567
Grant income EEULON 5 58,318,356 37,073,329
Licence fee income M RRE AU A 6 10,781,750 -
Application fee income s ERAIA 6 586,500 28,550
Recovery of costs of investigations FHER AU 6 25,532 1,125,641
Interest income FEHA 7 8,199,716 4,161,874
204,742,519 193,038,961
Expenditure * i
Staff costs BIMA 8,9 (162,209,108) (130,093,706)
Non-executive directors’ emoluments FRITESME 9 (3,480,000) (3,240,000)
Premises expenses M H 10 (4,906,352) (5,159,559)
Corporate communications expenses HREERZ N 11 (605,860) (4,620,907)
Legal and professional fees FERREESMA (1,124,060) (43,837)
Interest on lease liabilities HEHERE 15 (5,667,523) (643,238)
Depreciation and amortisation PTE R H
— Property, plant and equipment — W% - REREM 14 (6,948,812) (6,360,185)
- Right-of-use assets —HAEEE 15 (28,626,158) (15,508,008)
— Intangible asset —EmEEE 16 (215,500) (196,000)
Other operating expenses HAb i@ 12 (16,739,248) (9,099,866)
(225,522,621) (174,965,306)
(Deficit)/surplus and total FR (4 B#HR
comprehensive (loss)/income MBRE (B18) I
for the year (20,780,102) 18,073,655

F76AE100BHIMERARMBEREN —E D °
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B EES
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION B AROR 2
As at 31 March 2024 F2024F3A31H
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (&FELABTTLYITR)
Note
FEE 2024 2023
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment YIE - BB REM 14 26,929,718 9,062,164
Right-of-use assets RAEEE 15 102,986,894 6,461,670
Intangible asset mEE 16 260,833 359,333
Deposits bl 17 6,068,972 5,996,172
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 136,246,417 21,879,339
Current assets RBEE
Deposits, receivables and prepayments &4 ~ FEURER 7k M T8+ Z0E 17 22,352,417 31,528,560
Time deposits with original maturities REHAZHR=EAN
over three months TEHRTF R 18 = 12,500,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREeEEY 19 223,672,268 258,442,334
Total current assets REEELE 246,024,685 302,470,894
Current liabilities mEas
Accounts payable, accruals FERARAR - FEETER KR
and other liabilities EmaE 20 (9,801,012) (10,009,361)
Deferred income PEIEUTA 21 (139,286,598) (159,763,673)
Lease liabilities HeEaE 15 (15,795,087) (7,046,290)
Provision for reinstatement cost ER T2 A BAE 22 = (3,690,000)
Total current liabilities RBBERE (164,882,697) (180,509,324)
Net current assets MENEEFE 81,141,988 121,961,570
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Deferred income IEEYA 21 (64,386,213) (69,532,569)
Lease liabilities HEAaE 15 (91,973,954) —
Provision for reinstatement cost EIR TR A5 22 (7,500,000) —
Total non-current liabilities *rmEELE (163,860,167) (69,532,569)
Net assets EEFE 53,528,238 74,308,340
Funds =2
General fund —fRER 23 53,528,238 74,308,340
Total funds BEe 53,528,238 74,308,340

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 13 June 2024

20246 A 13 B EE = Bt MR T3

Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP EZX#{EL » SREFEE - AF# L
Chairman /&

Ms Janey Lai $8EZ|4+
Chief Executive Officer 1T A4%;

The notes on pages 76 to 100 form part of these financial statements. F768 E100BE MM AAM BT —E5 °
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ER R

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

For the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Ze LIE:
HE20245E3A31 B ILEE
(£EABTIIR)

General fund

—RES
At 1 April 2022 7202294 A1H 56,234,685
Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year FRBGRBIEEIWA 18,073,655
At 31 March 2023 7R2023%F3A31H 74,308,340
At 1 April 2023 R2023F4/81H 74,308,340

Deficit and total comprehensive loss for the year

At 31 March 2024

The notes on pages 76 to 100 form part of these financial statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B E
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS RERER
For the year ended 31 March 2024 HE2024F3 /8318 HFE
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (&FELABTTLYITR)
Note
M E 2024 2023
Cash flows from operating activities i“‘“x%iﬁ?iﬂ’ﬁﬁ%uws
(Deficit)/surplus for the year FR (B4, Btk (20,780,102) 18,073,655
Adjustments for: EJ%%%IEE :
Depreciation and amortisation YrEe K sH 30,790,470 22,064,193
Interest income FLE U A (8,199,716) (4,161,874)
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 5,667,523 643,238
Loss on disposal of property, BEYE RIEMSEMHERE
plant and equipment ) 1,282,778 -
Reversal of provision for 1ER TIEp A BRI
reinstatement cost (1,575,175) —
7,185,778 36,619,212
Changes in working capital: EEEEE
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, 2e - RUERERE
receivables and prepayments B FIER D, (E0) 9,062,621 (10,139,348)
Increase in accounts payable, FERTERIR - FERTE A &
accruals and other liabilities Hith & E15 0 171,624 1,234,788
Decrease in deferred income BEIEW AR (25,623,431) (20,483,623)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from FETEEEENRS RE)HRA
operating activities FEE (9,203,408) 7,231,029
Cash flows from investing activites ~ REEBELENRSRE
Proceeds from the disposal of property, BRE¥E « &R EM A
plant and equipment 1,000 —
Payment for the purchase of property, ~ BEEWH¥ - B L EM KB
plant and equipment (26,480,117) (4,634,278)
Payment for the purchase of intangible 8 & £ & E I8
asset (117,000) —
Payment for the office reinstatement MAEERITIERE (2,114,825) —
Interest received B UF & 8,144,222 3,330,020
Decrease in time deposits with original R 2| & =) LR =B AR EH
maturities over three months FHOR 12,500,000 212,750,000
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from ?xEEEFEE’Jﬁ% (RE),RA
investing activities THEE (8,066,720) 211,445,742
Cash flows from financing activities mﬂ’éﬁﬁisiﬂ’]fﬁ%mui
Lease payments HERK (17,499,938) (16,363,058)
Net cash outflow from financing RE RS ELENRES R FEE
activities (17,499,938) (16,3683,058)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BRE&RBEZEEY (RL) &
cash equivalents AR (34,770,066) 202,313,713
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April R4B1BWEREERBESEY 258,442,334 56,128,621
Cash and cash equivalents at MSASIEMERERBESEEY
31 March 19 223,672,268 258,442,334
The notes on pages 76 to 100 form part of these financial statements. F76EE100B KT AR EIREA—3 D ©
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B ER R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(@)

General Information

The Accounting and Financial Reporting Council (AFRC) is an
independent body established under the Accounting and Financial
Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap. 588) (AFRCO). Its office address
is 10th Floor, Two Taikoo Place, 979 King’s Road, Quarry Bay, Hong
Kong.

Principal Activities
Since 1 October 2022, the functions of the AFRC are:

i) registration and recognition of public interest entities (PIE) auditors,
issuing practising certificates to Certified Public Accountants
(CPAs), and registration of firm names, firms and corporate
practices;

ii) regulating PIE auditors, CPAs (Practising) practising accountancy
on their own account in their own names, CPA firms and corporate
practices (Practice Units) through inspection, investigation and
disciplinary sanction;

i) regulating CPAs through investigation and disciplinary sanction;

iv) carrying out enquiries into non-compliance with regulatory
requirements for financial reports in relation to listed entities;

v)  overseeing the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants’
(HKICPA'’s) performance in its specified functions;

vi)  acting as a regulatory body in respect of accounting professionals
under the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Ordinance (Cap. 615); and

vi)  taking any steps that the AFRC considers appropriate to promote
and support the development of the accountancy profession.

Statement of Compliance and Basis of
Preparation of the Financial Statements

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).
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(b)

(c)

Statement of Compliance and Basis of
Preparation of the Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis, under the historical cost convention and are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the functional currency of the AFRC.

As approved by the Finance Committee of the Legislative Council in
March 2024, the Government will inject a non-recurrent funding of
HK$200 million into AFRC in FY2024-25. The Government and the
AFRC will explore new financing models and further address the long-
term funding mechanism of the AFRC. Management assessed the
circumstances and determined that there is no material uncertainty
relating to the AFRC’s ability to continue as a going concemn.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the
application of IFRSs by the AFRC. There are also no key assumptions
concerning the future, or other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next
year.

Certain comparative figures have been restated to conform to the
current year presentation of the financial statements.

Adoption of new/revised IFRSs

IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are first effective for
the current accounting period of the AFRC. None of them has significant
impact on the accounting policies of the AFRC.

The AFRC has not applied any new or revised IFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current accounting period. Based on the assessment
undertaken to date, their adoption will not have any significant financial
impact on the AFRC'’s financial statements.
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4. LevyIncome

2024 2023

Transaction levy T HHE 68,123,162 87,040,639
PIE levy RPN ERBYE 31,251,876 32,025,867
PIE Auditor levy NEF A E R ZENRE 27,455,627 31,583,061
126,830,665 150,649,567

From 1 January 2022, the transaction levy and PIE levy are collected
by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (SEHK) on behalf of
the AFRC. The AFRC recognises transaction levy in the statement of
comprehensive income when the leviable transactions occur based on
the consideration for the sale and purchase by the seller and purchaser
of securities each at a rate of 0.00015% of the consideration. Amounts
recognised are determined based on returns provided to the AFRC
by SEHK. The AFRC recognises the levy receivable from a PIE for a
calendar year when leviable, when it is probable that the levy will be
received and when a reliable estimate can be made. The PIE levy is
required under the AFRCO to be calculated at 4.2% of the prepaid
annual listing fee as determined by the SEHK. A reliable estimate of the
levy receivable from a PIE can be made when it has been determined
by the SEHK and communicated to the AFRC. The PIE levy income is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line
basis over the calendar year to which it relates.
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Levy Income (continued)

The levy for Recognized PIE Auditors is collected directly by the
AFRC. Before 1 October 2022, the levy for Registered PIE Auditors
was collected by the HKICPA on behalf of the AFRC. After 1 October
2022, the levy for Registered PIE Auditors is collected directly by the
AFRC. The AFRC recognises the levy receivable from a PIE Auditor for
a calendar year when leviable, when it is probable that the levy will be
received and when a reliable estimate can be made. The levy receivable
from a PIE Auditor is required under the AFRCO to be calculated based
on:

i) the number of PIEs for which the PIE Auditor is carrying out,
as at 31 December of the preceding calendar year, a Specified
Engagement as defined in the AFRCO, at HK$6,155 per
engagement (or a minimum levy of HK$2,000 if there are no
Specified Engagements); and

i) 0.147% of the total remuneration paid to the PIE Auditor, in the
preceding calendar year, by the PIEs for which the PIE Auditor
carried out Specified Engagements.

A reliable estimate of the levy receivable from a PIE Auditor can be
made when a return of Specified Engagements and payments received
from PIEs in the calendar year has been received by the AFRC from the
PIE Auditor. The PIE Auditor levy income is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the calendar year
to which it relates.

Grant Income
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2024 2023

EGULON

Grant income

In August 2019, the AFRC received a grant of HK$400 million from
the Government to be utilised, during the period of migration for the
implementation with expanded functions effective from 1 October
2019, to cushion the AFRC against short-term fluctuations in the levy
income, to fund one-off capital and non-recurrent expenses, to allow
the AFRC to gradually expand its manpower taking into account its
actual operational needs, and to provide a buffer for other exigencies
of circumstances. There were no unfulfilled conditions or other
contingencies attached to the grant.

58,318,356 37,073,329
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Grant Income (continued)

Before the commencement of the levies on 1 January 2022, the
grant is recognised as deferred income in the statement of financial
position initially and is recognised as income on a systematic basis in
the statement of comprehensive income over the periods in which the
AFRC recognises as expenses the related costs, including depreciation
on capital expenditure, for which the grant is intended to compensate.

Upon the commencement of the levies on 1 January 2022, the
depreciation on capital expenditure incurred was recognised as
income over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments, for which the grant is intended to compensate.
The Government grant is also used for non-PIE functions related to the
expanded statutory functions with effect from 1 October 2022.

Licence Fee Income, Application Fee Income

and Recovery of Costs of Investigations

The AFRC exempted the application/licence fees for the issuing (or
renewal) of a practising certificate, registration (or renewal of the
registration) of a firm name, a firm or a corporate practice for one
year from 1 October 2022, and has started collecting such fees since
1 October 20283.

Licence fee income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the calendar year to which it relates.

Application fee income is recognised at a point in time on:

) completion of the application service upon which an auditor is
registered or recognised as a PIE auditor by the AFRC; and

i) completion of assessment services for the applications of a
practising certificate, registration of a firm name, a firm or a
corporate practice.

Recovery of costs of investigations is recognised once the disciplinary
decision becomes finalised and received by the AFRC.

Interest Income

Interest income was earned from time deposits and savings account.
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method.

BRI A ()
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1REENIER RS TR IR AE

TEREE ©
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H2022F10 1A €M REHRELHE
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B EES

Staff Costs 8. BT
2024 2023
Salaries, variable pay and bonuses N - FEBN S MIEA 144,197,790 113,538,608
MPF contributions MRS EHK 5,010,949 5,080,878
Staff recruitment expenses REBTYH 6,463,924 8,044,275
Medical and life insurance BB M AFRE 4,080,542 2,112,994
Staff training and development STIEIIREEER 561,804 405,993
Others Eith 1,894,099 910,958
162,209,108 130,093,706

Salaries, variable pay, bonuses and paid annual leave are accrued in
the period in which the employees rendered the associated services.
Bonuses are recognised when the AFRC has a present legal or
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past
events and a reliable estimate can be made.

Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) scheme under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485) in Hong
Kong are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions. Contributions are made
based on 5 percent of the employees’ gross salaries. The assets of
the MPF scheme are held separately from those of the AFRC, in an
independently administered fund. The employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF scheme, except for
the employer additional voluntary contributions, which are refunded to
the AFRC if an employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, subject to vesting scale of the MPF Scheme.

The above staff costs included the emoluments of the executive
directors (including the former CEO and Acting CEQ) as stated in note 9.

The Government launched the Job Creation Scheme (JCS) under
the Anti-epidemic Fund to create time-limited jobs to relieve the
unemployment situation due to the epidemic and anti-epidemic
measures. The AFRC received a subsidy of HK$294,798 from the JCS
during the year ended 31 March 2023 and the subsidy was applied
towards the payroll costs of additional staff for the time-limited positions
for the period from April 2022 to May 2022.

HM - FHEE  EARAHFFRINMEER
AR RIS HIARER - e M BREBEEE
i AYE TR S RIEAL R ER R ERE -
AR P & BRRE SRR SE b (b RT S - S HERRTE
AER -

EREEREREMEZAEECGatIEAES
STEMED) (5485 ) B T HRHIIEATE S
STEIERRES - L TE IR B IR AR RS AR A s
RAEIE  HERDREERFWNNES 2R
- BHEAESENEEREH B
BESHABE  THBUEENESRE -
BREHRFHVIA FARFELESTERNE
Ak AEEHEEEHE - EEEZEINGFE
MEH - EEEREZ A2 HEEEFIEA
BN T - et mERRBL
B AREIEEE o

BB TRABERM I SBNMITES
(BIERITTHARH R BETHREZ) W2 -

BEFEZEIEE AR e EMmE R
FIRZEIBR - BUSHETIREE S HElE
BArEr 8 - REBERREOBAL - #E2023
FIABBILFE - M BRI BIERA
81294,7987 B L H AL + Tz B AR 1T
20224 4 F £20224 5 A Hi R & BB B AL 79
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B iRk
9. Directors’ Emoluments 9. EEM=
2024
Directors’ Variable MPF
fee Salaries pay contributions Total
Fegallid
=S il FEHS DRESHN ok
Executive Director HTES
Marek Grabowski, former CEQ' 577 » BifTHU&E] - 2,471,095 582,000 = 3,053,095
Janey Lai, Acting CEO? BRE - BITHER? - 1,647,444 278,809 96,313 2,022,566
- 4,118,539 860,809 96,313 5,075,661
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP, Charman & &4 IREFIES -
i e 3 840,000 - - - 840,000
Roger Best, MH, JP BmE o REEE - ATHL 240,000 - - - 240,000
Eugene Fung, SC IBER - BRKEA 240,000 - - - 240,000
Stephen Hung, MH RRiEfs - KEHE 240,000 - - = 240,000
Miranda Kwok, JP LR - AF#L 240,000 - - - 240,000
Rosita Lee F{m 240,000 - - - 240,000
Stephen Lee THE 240,000 - - - 240,000
Keith Lui Bk 240,000 - - - 240,000
Francis Siu BEE 240,000 - - - 240,000
Peter Wan, MH FiRE  SEHS 240,000 - - - 240,000
Edward Yuen B2 240,000 - - - 240,000
James Lin® MHRFS 120,000 - - - 120,000
Andrew Fung, BBS, JP® HER  MEFER - KMt 120,000 - - - 120,000
3,480,000 - - - 3,480,000
Total directors’ emoluments BEZWE 3,480,000 4,118,539 860,809 96,313 8,555,661
1 Retired on 11 October 2023 1 R2023F10A11HEML
2 Appointed as Acting CEO and Executive Director with effect from 12 October 2 H2023F10 A 12 BB ZEREBEITHRER K
2023 TEE
3 Appointed with effect from 1 October 2023 8 H20283F 10 A1 HEZ T
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B EES
Directors’ Emoluments (continued) 9. EEME®W®
2023
Directors’ Variable MPF
fee Salaries pay  contributions Total
5 il
ETHd 2] EBHE  DEEHEN k]
Executive Director HITES
Marek Grabowski, CEQ BN 1THEH, - 4,122,504 582,000 - 4,704,504
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP, Charman & &4 * SREFIES -
A4t TR 840,000 - - - 840,000
Roger Best, MH, JP BmE - KEEE - ATHT 240,000 - - - 240,000
Eugene Fung, SC B+ ARKERD 240,000 - - - 240,000
Stephen Hung FEfE 240,000 - - - 240,000
Miranda Kwok, JP W - KFaL 240,000 - - - 240,000
Rosita Lee (i 240,000 - - - 240,000
Stephen Lee THE 240,000 - - - 240,000
Keith Lui T 240,000 - - - 240,000
Francis Siu BER 240,000 - - - 240,000
Peter Wan, MH FIE  REHE 240,000 - - - 240,000
Edward Yuen e 4 240,000 - - - 240,000
3,240,000 - - - 3,240,000
Total directors’ emoluments BELEHS 3,240,000 4,122 504 582,000 - 7,944 504
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10. Premises Expenses 10. YIEXZ
2024 2023
Rates, management fees and i BREBERTEASE
air-conditioning charge 5,914,237 3,813,059
Reversal of provision for reinstatement cost 18 R TI2A A (& O (1,575,175) -
Others HAit 567,290 1,346,500
4,906,352 5,159,559

In November 2022, the AFRC entered into a lease agreement for a
new office at Two Taikoo Place. The non-cancellable periods of the
lease is from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2027, with an option to renew
a further term of three years. The lease agreements for the old office at
the Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong ended on
31 August 2023.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the old office was reinstated at
the end of the lease term, and a reversal of provision for reinstatement
cost of HK$1,575,175 is recognised (note 22).

The depreciation of right-of-use assets is included in the depreciation
expenses in note 15 to the financial statements.

2022F 11 A + SRR & T Z
AEFIN—HHEEWZ - TAREHEESRA
20234 A1 HE202743A31H » A&
IEHISF - IR BB 2R/ ANER183FHA MA
DR ERAERE W ENR 202358 431 HE
5o

HE2024F3A31HILLFE - ERAERH
HIERISEIR - WHERER T2 AR HE
[611,575,1758 7T (Bfi£22) o

EREEETERT AMEHRKRM T T
EER-

11. Corporate Communications Expenses 1. B ER
2024 2023
Promotion and public education HEMAEHE 173,267 4,252,715
Events SEED 59,776 21,583
Publications H AR T 372,817 345,145
Others H - 1,464
605,860 4,620,907
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B EES
12. Other Operating Expenses 12. i EX N
2024 2023
Information and systems services EESES o 10,141,294 6,745,074
Printing, stationery and other expenses ITED « XA RHEMESY 3,348,284 1,669,739
Conference and duty visits 3 MNER 1,321,458 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and BEEYE REMBEMH
equipment B8 1,282,778 -
Professional liability insurance EEHTRE 633,008 666,816
Office equipment and fumiture expensed ~ HAZERBEREREREMAT 12,426 18,237
16,739,248 9,099,866
In accordance with section 19 of the AFRCO, the financial statements of RIECEE MM BIERBEN) FE19& - 28
the AFRC are audited by the Director of Audit. No fee is charged for this PR BHREBETEERAEERZ  BF
service. WEWEE RSB -
13. Taxation 13. HI8
Pursuant to section 16 of the AFRCO, the AFRC is exempt from taxation RECG T R BER DG FE161& - 8
under the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap. 112). REE R M B AR RGN ($112F)
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. Y3 ~ BRERBIM

86

Office Computers
furniture and IT Other office Leasehold
and fixtures  infrastructure equipment  improvements Total
&
YN REMARHE Hith HE
RAREE EfRie WAERE MEHE B
Cost AR
At 1 April 2022 20224811 4,268,401 4,735,498 1,131,471 8,380,809 18,516,179
Additions BA 774,961 1,841,654 578,298 965,823 4,160,736
At 31 March 2023 12023434318 5,043,362 6,577,152 1,709,769 9,346,632 22,676,915
At 1 April 2023 M2023F4 711 5,043,362 6,577,152 1,709,769 9,346,632 22,676,915
Additions BA 2,753,759 3,412,748 127,910 19,807,727 26,102,144
Disposals RBE (2,592,813) (1,321,654) (140,778) (9,346,632) (13,401,877)
At 31 March 2024 M2024F3H31H 5,204,308 8,668,246 1,696,901 19,807,727 35,377,182
Accumulated depreciation ~ E5HiTE
At 1 April 2022 R2022F4 811 (568,831) (2,886,608) (377,694) (3,421,433) (7,254,566)
Charge for the year FRZH (900,969) (1,131,322) (219,836) (4,108,058) (6,360,185)
At 31 March 2023 #2023%F3A31H (1,469,800 (4,017,930) (597,530) (7,629,491) (13,614,751)
At 1 April 2023 #2023%F4A1H (1,469,800) (4,017,930) (597,530) (7,529,491) (13,614,751)
Charge for the year FRZH (1,185,417) (1,510,969) (241,975) (4,010,451) (6,948,812)
Written back on disposals RERED 1,725,614 933,014 110,839 9,346,632 12,116,099
At 31 March 2024 R2024F3H31H (929,603) (4,595,885) (728,666) (2,193,310) (8,447,464)
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2024 R2024F3A31H 4,274,705 4,072,361 968,235 17,614,417 26,929,718
At 31 March 2023 R2023F3H31H 3,573,562 2,559,222 1,112,239 1,817,141 9,062,164
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except that items costing
less than HK$5,000 are expensed when incurred. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment over its estimated useful
life after considering its estimated residual value. The respective useful
lives are as follows:

Office furniture and fixtures 10 years
Computers and IT infrastructure 3to 5 years
Other office equipment 7 years
Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease term

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at the reporting date.

In February 2023, the AFRC changed its estimate of the remaining useful
life of certain furniture, which would not be relocated to the new office
in July 2023, to 5 months. This change in useful life has increased the
depreciation by HK$640,730 (2023: HK$442,239) for the year ended
31 March 2024.

Property, plant and equipment are derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. The gain
or loss arising from the derecognition is determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period in
which the asset is derecognised.

At the reporting date, the AFRC assesses whether there is any indication
that an item of property, plant and equipment may be impaired or a
previously recognised impairment loss no longer exists or may have
decreased. Following this year’s review, no impairment loss has been
recognised (2023: nil).

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R
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15. Leases

The lease for the AFRC’s new office at Two Taikoo Place (note 10)
are recognised as right-of-use assets with corresponding liabilities
recognised at the date at which the leased asset was available for use
by the AFRC.

The lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the remaining
lease payments less lease incentives receivable, discounted using the
AFRC’s incremental borrowing rate at the commencement date. Lease
payments are allocated between the liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to the statement of comprehensive income over
the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use
asset is depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

At the commencement date of the lease, the AFRC assessed that it was
reasonably certain to exercise the option to extend the lease by three
years at the end of the non-cancellable period of the lease and the lease
term was determined to be seven years. The incremental borrowing rate
applied to the lease at the commencement date was 5.125%. The cost
of reinstatement of the leased premises at the end of the lease term was
also capitalised as part of the cost of right-of-use asset (note 22).

15. #HE

REP ZEFPHAZHELL 100 KREE
BEAHEMBERE DREERHERE
BE  WHERHEBEAE -

E’Jiﬁﬁﬁi : I&Ffﬁﬁ gV RHEE
F“‘ﬂ‘fﬁﬁfﬁ MEFHRENEEAHAR
BEEERA - BERARBHAB KA K
ARG - AFHER A GEBNETEER

HIRI% - EREE ER AR E ORI
.

RELFRE S S RETHE  RAET
EEBEERTAIREERTERITEEE
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U ES
15. Leases (continued) 15. HE (@)

Buildings
Right-of-use assets FAEEE BT
Cost %N
At 1 April 2022 202294 H1H 44,458,264
Additions A -
At 31 March 2023 7202343 A31H 44,458,264
At 1 April 2023 R2023F4/81H 44,458,264
Additions BA 120,151,382
Expiry of lease agreements HEHED (44,458,264)
At 31 March 2024 202453 H31H 120,151,382
Accumulated depreciation ZEIE
At 1 April 2022 202244 51 (22,488,586)
Charge for the year FRZH (15,508,008)
At 31 March 2023 M2023F3A31H (87,996,594)

At 1 April 2023
Charge for the year
Expiry of lease agreements

At 31 March 2024

Net book value
At 31 March 2024

At 31 March 2023
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R2023F4A81H
FRZH
HEEEE

720245 3H31H

BREEE
202453831 H

R2023%F3A31H

(37,996,594)
(23,626,158)
44,458,264

(17,164,488)

102,986,894

6,461,670
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15. Leases (continued)

15. HE (@)

2024 2023
Lease liabilities HESE
Current B 15,795,087 7,046,290
Non-current JERH 91,973,954 -
107,769,041 7,046,290
2024 2023
Maturity profile of lease liabilities HEEBEGEVNARMBRESRE)
(contractual undiscounted cash flows):  FYRIHAART :
— Within 12 months —12{8 A K 20,748,000 7,098,050
— After 12 months but within 24 months —121E8 A1 BB iBE241E A 20,748,000 -
— After 24 months but within 60 months — 2418 A 1B TR B601E A 62,244,000 -
— After 60 months —601E A% 20,748,000 -
124,488,000 7,098,050

Rent free period has been taken into account in the maturity profile of

the lease liabilities.

2024

SEHC &R AHERBENIEINOR -

2023

Interest on lease liabilities

HEREFNE

(5,667,523)

(643,238)

Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2023-24 &3t R ISERRE 2023-24F )



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R
15. Leases (continued) 15. HE (@)
Changes in the lease liabilities and the reconciliation of the liabilities HEEBEEYRELEMAGHNAEY
arising from financing activities: B :
Lease liabilities
HEBE
At 1 April 2022 20224 31H 22,766,110
Non-cash changes: IR EE) -
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGBNE 643,238
Financing cash flows: BEREM
Lease payments HAERR (16,363,058)
At 31 March 2023 7R2023%F3A31H 7,046,290
At 1 April 2023 7202344 818 7,046,290
Non-cash changes: JEIR S
Increase in lease liability relating to new lease EEFHENHEESEEM 112,555,166
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE 5,667,523
Financing cash flows: BMERSRE
Lease payments GEN=XNEY (17,499,938)
At 31 March 2024 1202453831 H 107,769,041
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16. Intangible Asset

6. BV EE

Computer
software
WAL
Cost AR
At 1 April 2022 20224 51H 980,000
Additions A -
At 31 March 2023 7R2023%F3A31H 980,000
At 1 April 2023 M2023F451H 980,000
Additions A 117,000
At 31 March 2024 1202453831 H 1,097,000
Accumulated amortisation LS £
At 1 April 2022 R2022F 4811 (424,667)
Charge for the year FRZH (196,000)
At 31 March 2023 202343 A31H (620,667)
At 1 April 2023 R2023F4/81H (620,667)
Charge for the year FAZH (215,500)
At 31 March 2024 2024534318 (836,167)
Net book value BREFEE
At 31 March 2024 1202453H31H 260,833
At 31 March 2023 72023%F3A31H 359,333

This represents the development cost of Case Management System
(CMS) and Human Resources Management System (HRMS), which
were available for use from February 2020 and from June 2023,

respectively.

Intangible asset is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment loss, if any. Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line
basis to write off the costs of the CMS and HRMS over their estimated
useful lives of 5 years after considering their estimated residual values.
Amortisation commences when the CMS and HRMS are available for

use.

IARGEBERFARANEREE R GHNHA
FERA - D RIHR2020%2 A £ 202346 A #E
A -

B A ERRANR R 5 I SR E R 1R (40
B - BIHTIRZE IR R F R EET A
ERFRTEBEMGRER  AEREHS
HEKAHES S - BEARMTEERAR
ANEREEZRF A AEFEET o
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16.

17.

Intangible Asset (continued)
Residual value, useful life and amortisation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at the reporting date.

At the reporting date, the AFRC assesses whether there is any indication
that an item of intangible asset may be impaired or a previously
recognised impairment loss no longer exists or may have decreased.
Following this year’s review, no impairment loss has been recognised
(2023: nil).

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

6. BFEE (8

BE - AEASHREBHETEEINERER
EETRE - RIELEERE -

REERH g RFERELREMNTR
BRBIVEERBHIRRE - SUBERERK
MEBEEENEFEHDERD - B
FEEMNR  RAERIBEMRERE (2023
R o

Deposits, Receivables and Prepayments 17. %€ ~ EWERR R FB(IXIE
2024 2023
Deposits e 6,128,972 17,539,628
Accounts receivable R BR TR 9,743,589 11,018,922
Interest receivable JEUF B, 1,111,666 1,056,172
Other receivable E b GRS 193,956 -
Prepayments TES A
— Medical and life insurance —EERAFRR 875,555 388,653
— Staff benefits —BI@EA 25,179 1,040
— Implementation services fees and —EHERBE AR ATE
licence fees 6,996,392 4,599,399
— Others —HAh 3,346,080 2,920,918
28,421,389 37,524,732
Less: non-current portion B IEmENEBS (6,068,972) (5,996,172)
Current portion mEhER D 22,352,417 31,528,560

The accounts receivable relates to transaction levy, PIE levy and PIE
auditor levy. The AFRC does not provide an ageing analysis of accounts
receivable as the balance as at 31 March 2024 is expected to receive in
a short period of time.

Deposits as at 31 March 2024 mainly represent refundable rental
deposit for the AFRC’s office at Two Taikoo Place, please see note 10
for details.

Prepayments for implementation services fees and licence fees as
at 31 March 2024 mainly represent the implementation cost for the
AFRC’s IT systems such as CMS and Financial Management System.

ENIRRER ZRE - ARNaBEEBHE R
RBEN DB ZBENEFR - ANE2024
FIANHFEERNIEMANER - Rl
B3l R A AR R BR R D AT

R2024F3A31AMZE T ZARAREYH
AEHZEHRAZENAEDNASES (R
MEE10) ©

H £2024F3 A31 HENMNE IR & B
FAETEZRSY REMERERNEBER
N MEHERERGMIEER RS
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18. Time Deposits with Original Maturities Over
Three Months

Time deposits with original maturities over three months as at
31 March 2023 carried fixed interest rates of 0.9% per annum and had
maturities less than 12 months from the reporting date.

19. Cash and Cash Equivalents

18. BRI EZR=E B M EHF
=
R2023F3A31H » BREHBEZN=EAN
T IR EE FHR0.9%:1 8 WHRE
HE3121E A R EIE] o

19. RERRESEEY

2024 2023

Cash on hand FHERS 5,104 11,023

Current accounts S ERHTE R 11,198,746 1,686,444

Savings account EEFX 36,768,418 48,954,867
Time deposits with original maturities [RE|EAE T iRm=1E A &

within three months TEBITE R 175,700,000 207,790,000

223,672,268 258,442,334

The effective interest rates on the short-term time deposits at
31 March 2024 were between 4.23% to 4.50% (2023: 3.00% to 4.51%)
per annum.

20. Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other

R2024F3A31H @ RITEH KL TH
FRHNERFERNE E4.23%%4.50% (2023
F : 3.00%ZE4.51%) °

20. BAYER - EETERAKREME

Liabilities &

2024 2023

Accounts payable and accruals FERTRRR K FEET B
(financial) (2RBHE) 9,581,223 9,812,284

Accounts payable and accruals JEBR R R IERTE A
(non-financial) GEemBa® 197,997 195,785
Other liabilities HivBfE 21,792 1,292
9,801,012 10,009,361

Other liabilities include the application and licence fee income received
in advance.

HitBERERRNFFERRERERR
A °
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The AFRC charges licence fees for renewal of practising certificates,

U ES
21. Deferred Income 21, IR A
2024 2023
At 1 April 2023/1 April 2022 M2023F4 818, 202294 A1H 229,296,242 249,779,865
PIE levy income for 2024/2023 2024,/ 2023 F AR B L
BBRA 30,843,736 30,857,635
PIE auditor levy income for 2024/2023 2024,/ 2023 F AR F 25 B L
ZHEEERA 27,723,967 26,787,745
Licence fee income for 2024/2023 20242023 F FE R E AU 43,127,000 -
Recognised as grant income in the year WRABFREBWA (58,318,356) (37,073,329
Recognised as PIE levy income in the year R AFRNARFFERE
HBRA (31,196,226) (81,646,061)
Recognised as PIE auditor levy income BRAEFRNARFZEE
in the year ZEREM B A (27,021,802) (9,409,613)
Recognised as licence fee income R AT AR ERRA
in the year (10,781,750) -
At 31 March 2024/31 March 2023 R202443 A31H 20233 H31H 203,672,811 229,296,242
Less: Amount estimated to be recognised &l : fEET R —FRER A
as income within one year AR £ 58 (139,286,598) (159,763,673)
Amount classified under non-current NERERBEESE
liabilities 64,386,213 69,532,569
2024 2023
Representing: (A
Current RED 139,286,598 159,763,673
Non-current ERH 64,386,213 69,532,569
203,672,811 229,296,242

Y RERABEFEENRNERS

SR

2 FBASREEEERNERER -
FIEEMONEEREFIREREER (I

and renewal of registration of firm names, firms or corporate practices
on a calendar-year basis, each of which is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the calendar year in which it relates (note 6). The deferred 76) c IREWAEZEBYERERRE - 8
income mainly relates to the licence fees received in advance which SHF4F1HE12A31 B AP A R RS
represent the unearned licence fee income for the period from 1 April to A °

31 December of a year.
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21. Deferred Income (continued) 21.

Significant changes in the balances of deferred income that were in
relation to annual licence fees are shown below:

EFEWA ()
S IR B A A B EIE R A S EX

2024 2023
Increase due to advance payments FR A F AUERTE T R IE 4 hn
received during the year 43,127,000 -
Decrease due to recognition of R FARERMERERIA
licence fee income during the year ik > (10,781,750) -
22. Provision for Reinstatement Cost 22 ER TR A

In accordance with the lease agreement of Two Taikoo Place, the
AFRC is required to restore the office premises to the original condition
at the end of the lease term. A provision has been recognised for the
estimated expenditure. The cost has been capitalised as part of the
cost of the related right-of-use asset which is depreciated over the lease
term (note 15). For the old office, it was reinstated at the end of the
lease term on 31 August 2023 (note 10) and the payment for the office
reinstatement of HK$2,114,825 is included in the statement of cash

REAH ZEHE R - S0 RERHER
EEBEHATERZERERANMKI - B
HEMGE I HELEE BRKRAEER
{EAIEREREEERAN —BD - TR
FAHINFHRITE (I5E15) - EMAETER
202348 A31 A1H HAfE MR 1E R (FT5E10) -
2,114,825 TN AEER TRHOFIAD
BREEEREERER

flows.

2024 2023
At 1 April 2023/1 April 2022 202344818 /202244 A18 3,690,000 3,690,000
Additions 0 7,500,000 -
Utilisations A (2,114,825) -
Reversal B[] (1,575,175) -
At 31 March 2024/31 March 2023 MR202453A318 202353 A31H 7,500,000 3,690,000
Less: Non-current portion B IEmENE D (7,500,000) -
Current portion MENER S - 3,690,000

23. Funds 23. 8%

General fund represents the operating surplus of the AFRC’s recurrent —RESTNESYREEEESCNEER
funding. R ©
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B EES
24. Financial Instruments 24, FTHE
The carrying amounts of financial instruments by category are as FHESMTANKRESEAT -
follows:
2024 2023
Financial assets SRIEE
At amortised cost: RHE S AT IBR
Deposits and interest receivable Ee RIEWH S
— Current — e 1,171,666 12,599,628
— Non-current —3EmE 6,068,972 5,996,172
Time deposits with original maturities REIEIEZ R =B A
over three months TEBIER - 12,500,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEEY 223,672,268 258,442,334
230,912,906 289,538,134
Financial liabilities A=
At amortised cost: RHE S AT IER
Accounts payable and accruals (financial)  JEfERAMETER (@MER) 9,581,223 9,812,284
Lease liabilities HEAE
— Current —RE 15,795,087 7,046,290
— Non-current — 3B ED 91,973,954 -
117,350,264 16,858,574

The carrying amounts of the AFRC’s financial assets and financial
liabilities approximate their fair values as at 31 March 2024 and
31 March 2023.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement
of financial position when the AFRC becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of an instrument. They are initially measured at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method except for lease liabilities as stated in note 15 to the financial
statements. No transaction costs have been incurred.

R2024%E3 4318 &2023%E3A31H - &8t
BremEERSMABENEASARIA

RAEE-

TREENERABENERKA—ES
BT REARIGRORTHITE - REBEHRRE
R o B R T AR BERKRM 15
JIEMEEREN  RVIARAEEFE
HRARAERF R R RB AT - &
FARBEERHRA ©
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24. Financial Instruments (continued) 24. TR T A ()

98

Financial assets

The objective of holding financial assets is to collect contractual cash
flows, which are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. The recognition of a loss allowance for
expected credit losses on a financial asset measured at amortised cost is
based on the probability of default upon initial recognition and on-going
assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk. The AFRC assesses whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing the risk of
default occurring on the financial asset at the reporting date with the risk
of default at the date of initial recognition. Each financial asset is assessed
on an individual basis and the AFRC takes into account both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

No provision for impairment loss for the financial assets was made at
31 March 2024 as the financial assets were considered to be of low
credit risk and the expected credit losses of these financial assets was
minimal.

A financial asset is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset have expired or the AFRC has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the relevant obligation is
discharged, is cancelled or expires.

TREE
RETREENENTURDERRERE -
ZEREREERENAE RRELSHF
B o RIEHERRRES BRE LN TG
REFBEFASHMEOTEN - SAERE
EAE AT ENTAREEBERAEE
B g RBAKERMEENRS AH%
ERANRRERTER R BRERHNE
SETHE - U eREENERRRS
VIARERIARERFREIE - BIHSHEE
VEFETHE - SMREREAE RSN
EENEULHER  BRUNEERNERTE
B AE NN AT S RTIE LAY -

M2024%3A31H » Y EREBEERERS
BiteEE - DRESREERRAEARR
REAZELHEENEHEEBENTHE
e

Mt EEEYCESRENENC 2 MM
R B EEMBRENELT 2300 E R = &
R RTREESRRLER -

TRRE
TR BENERENEERER - BUBSEHE
B LR o
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25. Financial Risks

(G

(b)

Credit risk
The AFRC’s credit risk is primarily attributable to deposits and interest
receivable, time deposits and other bank balances.

The Board approved an investment policy which, subject to other limits,
only allows the AFRC to place deposits with licensed banks in Hong
Kong having regard to their credit rating. Those funds are deposited with
banks that are rated P-1 by Moody’s or A-1 by S&P. The policy also
limits the amount placed with each bank and the maximum duration the
deposit is placed, and specifies the minimum number of banks to be
placed at any time in order to manage its credit risk.

The portfolio of deposits is managed and monitored to ensure it meets
the investment policy with monthly reports submitted to the Finance and
Corporate Affairs Committee and bi-monthly reports to the Board. As a
result, the AFRC is not exposed to significant credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of the
financial assets as set out in the statement of financial position.

While other financial assets are subject to the impairment requirements,
the AFRC has estimated that their expected credit losses are minimal
and considers that no loss allowance is required.

Liquidity risk

The AFRC has a strong cash position and therefore has a very low
level of liquidity risk. The AFRC maintains sufficient levels of cash and
cash equivalents and manages its working capital by carefully reviewing
forecasts on a regular basis. All financial liabilities except lease liabilities
were due to be repaid within three months (2023: three months) from
the reporting date. The maturity profile of the lease liabilities is disclosed
in note 15.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

25. & EhE

(@

(b)

= AR
SV RMEAENERRREES MRE K E
WIS, TEERTF A R B BRI TAE£4 ©

REEZRDEBNRERK 2V REN
ERFAHEMRHRET  REEEFERE
BRBRITRULEN - ZEESFHNER
BREATP-1 R ERE L BT R A-1 K
R1T - BRABRKIRE T SFRITNFR L
PRANE B F R R - Y AR T (R AT
REARTHREEE  AEEEEEHA
B o

SVREBNERFRES  BRTEKRE
B - YEBARMBEREEEBREER
BEMEAREZRREIRS - EN Lk
it EMRYEENERER - MERLE
REIIND R EERESERRITAEN S
=EAREE

BEHMEREEBENTARERE VR
MEFERHREEEEMTER  YRAES
AHEERRME o

REBE R
SMRNRSARNTR - B RE TR

ER - @M BRERSERKINRENAESF
BY  WEEEHEERNBRATERLE
BE®  BRHEEREMMIFEEREER
s B HRR ={E A R (20234 : =& B) 28
B8 - FREHERENI IR E155

o

Mk

A

5
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BRI
25. Financial Risks (continued) 25. L RbE S (&)
(c) Market risk (c) mEEb
Currency risk R
The AFRC receives its funding and settles its expenses in Hong Kong SV RESWARIEHAEET MAES
dollars. Its financial assets and financial liabilities are all denominated in RMEEREMEBEHANETAEN - AtE
Hong Kong dollars. Hence, the AFRC is not exposed to any currency B B AR EE R
risk.
Interest rate risk FIZm f
The AFRC'’s interest bearing assets mainly comprise funds placed in SHRNENEBEEETE AETE XA TEE
time deposits with fixed interest rates. The AFRC is subject to interest Fak - EmBEREREE - SHBBEEEF =
rate risk where a volatile market exists. This risk is managed by having b - @ REREEE TRBEGERNER
several short term deposits. The AFRC’s exposure to interest rate risk ZREk - 2 REEROFERRER - Fit
is limited and therefore no sensitivity analysis on such risk has been WARE I E R EITRRE DT o
prepared.
26. Capital Commitments 26. EINENE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2024 not provided for in M2024F3A31 A » R NIE LB
the financial statements were as follows: BRI REEARENT:
2024 2023
Contracted for SHES 822,562 20,850,000
Authorised but not contracted for EEREERETL - -
822,562 20,850,000

Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2023-24 &3t R ISERRE 2023-24F )



COMMITTEES AND PANELS

Committees
Seven committees are set up to advise the Board on different affairs of the
AFRC.

Advisory Committee

The Advisory Committee is established under section 10B of the Accounting
and Financial Reporting Council Ordinance. In addition to the Chairman and
CEO of the AFRC, the Committee consists of members appointed by the
Financial Secretary from different stakeholder groups to advise the Board on
matters of policy regarding its regulatory objectives and functions.

Terms of reference
° To advise the AFRC on matters of policy regarding any of its regulatory
objectives and functions.

Membership and attendance at committee meetings during the
12-month period ended 31 March 2024 were as follows:

ZEESREEE

ZEE

SVRRBE7TEZES A TRAEBREZHIR

iz -

HHEEE

FAZBEEEREBE(EFEMBERBIED) H

10BEIAKIL R @M BEFE RITHRAHRS - £ 8

KB EBEAMBAARRTRFZHE P EHD

K ERTAERK - SiEREM RRE B ERBEEN

BREE @ MEERREHE

o HEVRAERRKBEMABREERHEE
B

HZE2024F3A31BW12E A i - ZEEKE
RERHERNT :

Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP (Chairman) BEAMIEL  REFIEE KPP+ GFE)

Mr Clement Chan Kam-wing, BBS, MH, JP PRépec S - IHEFIRE - REBBHE - AFat
Ms Ivy Cheung Wing-han sRFEMN 2+

Mr Stephen Fung Sing-hong RSEMSTE

Mr Marek Grabowski (CEQ)" BNk (FrB4E )

Ms Janey Lai (Acting CEO)" TRBE L (FETHAAH)

Mr Edward Lau Fu-keung B E R E

Ms Elizabeth Law, MH, JP BEENL  KEFE - AFEL
Mr Patrick Law Fu-yuen EEIRSEE

Ms Doris Lian Shaodong EOL Lt

Mr Low Chee-keong BFEsR &

Mr Webster Ng Kam-wah, JP REPESLAE - KT

Dr Christopher To Wing PREeE L

Ms Flora Wang Fang T+

Ms Daisy Yeung BT

Number of meetings: 4 BRXHE 4

The average attendance rate was 83%.

! As from 12 October 2023, Mr Marek Grabowski retired from the Advisory Committee
upon the expiry of his term as CEO, and Ms Janey Lai as Acting CEO became a
member of the Committee.

BT EE 583% -

! B2023F 101288 « §HFEATETBERNEERE
WMEBERTESR  BEATRASRBRELLRNAES
Rk E -
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COMMITTEES AND PANELS
ZEEREEH

Inspection Committee
The Inspection Committee advises the Board on matters concerning the
inspection function.

Terms of reference

To provide advice on the Operations Manual for Inspection (which
covers areas such as inspection strategy, inspection process and
follow-up actions).

To provide advice on the annual inspection plan, selection mechanism
to determine which firms and engagements are subject to inspection
and guidelines to determine the audit quality rating of a PIE engagement
subject to inspection.

To provide advice, as requested by the Inspection Department, on
inspection findings, audit quality rating or follow-up actions on individual
cases.

To provide advice, as requested by the Inspection Department, on the
extent of publication of inspection findings on individual firms (e.g. to
the audit committee of the related listed entity, or to the public), and the
contents of any such publication.

To provide advice on the interim and annual inspection activity reports
of the AFRC to be approved by the Board.

To perform an annual review (both substantive and procedural) of
the performance of the inspection function by selecting a sample of
completed inspections and provide recommendations on the practices
and procedures of the inspection function.

To provide advice on matters in relation to the inspection function as
requested by the Board from time to time.

Membership and attendance at committee meetings during the

=

st |m

=

=EEg

RZBERERE

ZBENFENSERIEMH

i -

s E

HERFMREHER (REEREK - BF
BF - RETHE) -

HEEERTETER T ERNFEHNIE
BHHS - USRS ERN ETERER
METERFAESIREER -

BRERAERRERERNE %?
E?EEF%&EZEEE Ej]?I{/\ =N

i

RERBEKRER FHEAERERORH
BEGIMEEMER LEMERNRITEZE
BHMARRR) RAEMTTIEARRER-E
8.

REMRTHRFEEREPHRERER
5o UHEZRIE -

BBMEC TR ERER - RERBE
REETEREN(BREREFERN) - X5

ERBAE MR MIZ Fr o2 KR -
REERERITHREERENEERHEE
J=A

B ZF2024F3A31BW12B R B - ZE82E€KE

12-month period ended 31 March 2024 were as follows: kEEHERNT ¢
Mr Roger Best, MH, JP (Chairman) PONERSLAE KRBT - KFEHT(EE)
Ms Rosita Lee (Vice-Chairman) MMzt (5/E/E)

Ms vy Cheung sRABRAZ

Ms Grace Hui FRiEZ =+

Dr James Lin' MR FIEL

Mr Keith Lui B EAE

Mr William Mak BFR%EE

Mr Francis Siu EHEG:Pd

Dr Peter Wan, MH FiREE L - KBS

Mr Stephen Wong FEXSE

Mr Edward Yuen BrEE 5t A

Number of meetings: 4

The average attendance rate was 91%.

1

Appointed on 30 October 2023.

FRFHILEERII%

1

2023510 H30HEEAE »
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Investigation and Compliance Committee
The Investigation and Compliance Committee advises the Board on matters
concerning the investigation and enquiry functions.

Terms of Reference

To provide advice and guidance on the development of policies,
strategies, guidelines and procedures for the operation of the
investigation and enquiry functions.

To provide advice in setting selection criteria, including areas of focus,
for the financial statements review programme annually.

To provide advice on technical matters relating to accounting, auditing
and professional ethics as identified by staff.

To receive operation reports of the Investigation and Compliance
Department, oversee the progress of enquiries, investigations,
complaints and financial statements reviews and provide
recommendation on operational matters.

To perform an annual review (both substantive and procedural) of the
performance of the complaint, review, investigation and enquiry handling
functions by selecting sample completed cases of:

()  complaints and reviews which are closed without further action;

(i)  investigations initiated under the AFRCO which are suspended or
closed without further action or with follow-up action being taken;
and

(i) enquiries conducted by the staff of the Investigation and
Compliance Department which are suspended or closed without
further action or with other follow-up being taken.

To provide advice on matters in relation to the investigation and enquiry
functions as requested by the Board from time to time.

g

ot

I3

COMMITTEES AND PANELS
ZEENREEH

EZ8Y
HEZERREMAEREABENEEAES

PRt -

BEsE

P R BB AEFER - KA - 155l
MiEFRHER IS -

BERMBHRRBHA A BTERLENSIE
(BREHBE)REEER

B ITAAERBAE - B REXERD
BifrEEERER

EEREHNEFRS  EEEM AL -
B LB RREANEZANERSE
R -

FEEMENTER  SURERE - = - #

() EBrARILEE—SITBHIRERNER

(i) REBEC(CERMBERGEI) RF - &
F 08B REGE — P D RRRETH
MTTREREMESR © &

(i) FMFAEPELERM  HEIOLEFIE
— 178 E RN E M IR E TR A
EEEZE -

REZRERTHRAE R EABENER
REER -
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COMMITTEES AND PANELS
ZEEREEH

Membership and attendance at committee meetings during the
12-month period ended 31 March 2024 were as follows:

B ZE2024F3A31AW12@A AN - ZEEEHRE
REBEHERMT

Dr Peter Wan, MH (Chairman) FiREE L KEIEEE)
Mr Stephen Lee (Vice-Chairman) THESLE FIERE)

Mr Andrew Fung, BBS, JP'
Mr Stephen Hung, MH

BEBKLE  HEFES  KFHL
FREERAE - RERE

Mr Anthony Leung? RNR P 2
Mr Eric Tong? EER K AS
Mr Stephen Weatherseed BERREE
Mr Edward Yuen FrEEs se 4

Number of meetings: 4

The average attendance rate was 93%.

1
2

3

Appointed on 30 October 2023.
Retired on 30 September 2023.
Retired on 4 February 2024.

Policy, Registration and Oversight Committee

The Policy, Registration and Oversight Committee advises the Board on
matters concerning policy research and guidance on governance issues,
the registration and recognition of audit practitioners, practice units and PIE
auditors, as well as oversight of the HKICPA’s performance of specified
functions, with the aim of improving the quality of audit and financial reporting.

Terms of reference

To advise the Board on the annual plan of the Policy, Registration and
Oversight Department and oversee the performance of executives to
ensure effective implementation of the approved annual plan.

To provide strategic input and perspective on the current, emerging
and potential issues affecting the quality of financial reporting, audit and
corporate governance for identification and prioritization of research
proposals and other initiatives for promoting the quality of the above
matters.

To consider and advise on research proposals and other initiatives
being undertaken that are conducive to enhancing the quality of
financial reporting, audit and corporate governance and any resultant
publications and thought leadership projects.

To advise on matters in relation to the issue of practising certificates
and registration of firm names, firms and corporate practices under Part
2A of the AFRCO, and the registration and recognition of PIE auditors
under Part 3 of the AFRCO.

SRR 4
2R FHHFEE A3 ©

! MR2023F 10 A0 REZL AT -
2 2023F9 A30HE(T ©
3 20242 A4HRIT »

BR - AMREEERES

BE - M EEEZRE e ARE ARENERER
EAEsl  BEAEEE - AXFEML R ARG
ERZBENEMERA - WA eV REEE
AR ASHERBENEE  AEERREMHR
& RS EA N BERNER -

g E
o RER - M REEMFANFEEAES

BREBERNEETHRABNRE - R
EHENFEREIBRHIT -

o HFEMBER TS ROXERGERNA
B S HREERBERHREERR R
B NEEME S RMEMEZELREEE
RFF - REMIRTHETT DB ENE X -

o HRATRAMBIER JiFREEXELER
BRI FTOT R R R A ERE  PA AL T 2RAY
TR BMEREIRR  ETEREREHRE
I=h8

o BREBCEF RMBERBE) F2ARE
HARBEMKEBAAME - FHARRE
EBEEM - ARBIERCEE MM FERB 5
P EIFFM AR AT AR H 2 B B2 EAD Y
EHREHER -
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To advise the Board on the exercise of the power to impose conditions
regarding the issue and renewal of practising certificates under section
20AAB and section 20AAG of the AFRCO, registration of corporate
practices under section 20AAZZG(3)(a) of the AFRCO, and registration
and recognition of PIE auditors under section 20S and 20ZR of the
AFRCO.

To perform an annual review (both substantive and procedural) of the
performance of the registration and recognition function by selecting
sample completed applications.

To consider and comment upon the report on oversight of the HKICPA’s
performance of functions specified in section 9(b) of the AFRCO
(Specified Functions), including recommendations to the HKICPA on
its performance of Specified Functions, and advise the Board on the
exercise of the power to issue directions to HKICPA under section
10(1A)(c) of the AFRCO.

To perform any other functions as shall be determined by the Board
from time to time.

COMMITTEES AND PANELS
ZEENREEH

HIRBE (ST RV B ERBIE) F20AAB
1EFIZE20AAGHRT TIE ST B Z R B P A /E
H » F20AAZZG(3)(a) M A BB ZE - A
N %208 K20ZRIGF M R R AR F| = E 88
ZEENRE N IEEEIN - MEEREHE
ﬁ °

BB AT SRR - HEM R R R
ORI RN (RERETEN) -

A BRE (G R B ERBGD) £9(b)
FREERBEFMASHEABERRNORE
ETRERREHER - BEAEERBER
ARG AGREER  URHRE(E
st RS ER B IEDI) E10(1A) ) &M EE
FETEASELEEE TR NTTRAE
EREHER -

BITERRTRERE S EAEtEREE

Membership and attendance at committee meetings during the & 2024538318 12@RHAK - EEERE

12-month period ended 31 March 2024 were as follows: RERHEENT
Ms Rosita Lee (Chairman) Fmi L (£/E)
Mr Stephen Lee (Vice-Chairman) THRBNLEFIERE)

Mr Andrew Fung, BBS, JP'
Mr Stephen Hung, MH

BEBKLE - HEFEES  KFHL
FREERLE  RERE

Mr Keith Lui BN E

Mr Francis Siu REREAE

Mr Paul Smith Paul Smith4t 4

Ms Nancy Tse, JP AR - Rt
Mr Jackson Woo AR

Prof Wayne Yu AR IEHIR

Number of meetings: 4

The average attendance rate was 90%.

! Appointed on 30 October 2023.
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Discipline Committee
The Discipline Committee advises the Board on matters concerning the
disciplinary functions.

Terms of Reference
° To provide comments and observations on the recommendation reports
of the Discipline Department in relation to disciplinary cases.

° To oversee the overall performance of the Discipline Department on an
annual basis.

Membership and attendance at committee meetings during the
12-month period ended 31 March 2024 were as follows:

KEERIEES
RERIZEENABLCERIBENSEERAE
FREfER -

BEsE

o HLBREONERMLEREN EARNEFERS
RESEMEE -

o HRERENMMEBRERIETRFEEE -

BZE2024F3831AW12@A A IR - ZEES K
REBHERMT :

il

Mr Eugene Fung, SC (Chairman)

Mr Roger Best, MH, JP BRI AE

ISRERR SR

BIRAER (£/E)
RERE - AFHEL

Mr Stephen Hung, MH BRB(EE - REFE

Mr Stephen Lee THBSLE

Dr James Lin' MR FIEL

Number of meetings: 5 BEXHE 5

The average attendance rate was 79%.

! Appointed on 30 October 2023.

HEFHHEERRTI% o

! 7202310 A30H E X AT »
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Finance and Corporate Affairs Committee

The Finance and Corporate Affairs Committee advises the Board on finance,
budgeting, corporate communications, administration and other corporate
matters of the AFRC.

Terms of reference

To advise, review and make recommendations on the development of
policies and procedures relating to finance, administration, information
technology and corporate communications matters.

To review policies and procedures to ensure effective financial and
internal controls.

To review annual financial statements and audit findings, and oversee
the implementation of the audit recommendations.

To review and make recommendations to the Board on the draft annual
budget and forecast, including reviewing and monitoring the actual

performance against budget.

To advise, review and make recommendations on treasury management
and related performance.

To advise, review and make recommendations on the financial

sustainability of the AFRC, including the levels of levy and various fees.

To advise on matters in relation to capital expenditure.

To make recommendations to the Board on the award of the tender for
procurement.

To advise, review and make recommendations on the Information
Technology strategic plans and oversee the execution of the plans.

To formulate strategies for external communications and promotion of
public awareness of the AFRC.

To exercise oversight on the effective implementation of communications
and public promotion strategies.

To consider and review the AFRC’s Investment Policy annually for
Board’s approval.

To consider any matters as requested by the Board from time to time.
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COMMITTEES AND PANELS
ZEEREEH

Membership and attendance at the committee meetings during the
12-month period ended 31 March 2024 were as follows:

B ZE2024F3A31AW12@ AR - ZEEEHRE
REsEtEEMT

Ms Miranda Kwok, JP (Chairman)

WIWFLL - KF#t (FE)

Mr Francis Siu (Vice-Chairman) RREREE (BIF/E)

Dr Eva Chan PRAGERE L

Mr Marek Grabowski (CEO)! BN (FTB %)

Ms Janey Lai (Acting CEO)" FERB Lt (FETHAA)
Mr Keith Pogson? Byl a2

Mr Richard Tsang SESE

Mr Edward Yuen FroEE sl o A=

Number of meetings: 4 SERE 4

The average attendance rate was 88%.

1

As from 12 October 2023, Mr Marek Grabowski retired from the Finance and Corporate
Affairs Committee upon the expiry of his term as CEO, and Ms Janey Lai as Acting CEO
became a member of the Committee.

Retired on 30 September 2023.

Compensation and Nomination Committee

The Compensation and Nomination Committee advises the Board on
all human resources-related matters and nominations to be made or
recommended by the AFRC.

Terms of reference

To advise, review and make recommendations on human resources
policies, procedures and related issues.

To advise, review and make recommendations on the terms and
conditions of employment for staff, including the structure and level of
staff remuneration.

To advise, review and make recommendations on remuneration
packages to ensure competitiveness with the market.

To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration and
reappointment (if applicable) of management staff (CEO, Executive
Directors, Heads of Department and General Counsel).

To nominate members for committees or panels set up by the Board
and make recommendations of members for panels set up by the

Government that are relevant to the AFRC.

To consider any matters as requested by the Board from time to time.
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Membership and attendance at the committee meetings during the

12-month period ended 31 March 2024 were as follows:

COMMITTEES AND PANELS
ZEENREEH

BZE2024F3A31AW12E A HAE  ZEEKE
EEeRHERNT

Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP (Chairman)
Ms Miranda Kwok, JP (Vice-chairman)
Mr Roger Best, MH, JP

Mr Marek Grabowski' (CEO)

Ms Janey Lai (Acting CEO)'

Ms Janet Li

Mr Francis Mok

Mr David Stannard?

BEXRAEL  REFEE - KFHLEE)
BT LL - KPRt (FEE)
MRS L - REBRE - KFHL
BATE (TTBAEE)

FEREB L+ (FLTTEAREL)

Number of meetings: 4

The average attendance rate was 83%.

! As from 12 October 2023, Mr Marek Grabowski retired from the Compensation and
Nomination Committee upon the expiry of his term as CEO, and Ms Janey Lai as Acting

CEO became a member of the Committee.

2 Retired on 30 September 2023.
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COMMITTEES AND PANELS

ZEEREEH

Honorary Advisory Panel

Ms Melissa Brown '

Dr Eva Chan

Ms Ivy Cheung

Dr Christine Chow

Mr Fox Chu

Ms Grace Hui

Mr Herbert Hui?

Ms Ashley Khoo

Mr Anthony Leung
Ms Janet Li

Mr William Mak

Mr Francis Mok

Mr Keith Pogson '

Prof Zabihollah Rezaee
Mr Paul Smith

Mr David Stannard '
Mr Eric Tong®

Mr Richard Tsang

Ms Nancy Sau Ling Tse, JP
Mr Stephen Weatherseed
Mr Stephen Wong

Mr Jackson Woo

Mr Elton Yeung*

Prof Wayne Yu

! Retired on 30 September 2023
2 Appointed on 1 September 2023
3 Retired on 4 February 2024

4 Retired on 29 February 2024
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Financial Reporting Review Panel

Panel Convenors

Mr lan Farrar

Mr Mark Johnson

Mr Ernest Lee'

Mr Paul Shieh, SC

Mr Tang Kwai Chang

Ms Priscilla Wong, BBS, JP
Mr Wong Kim Man

Mrs Betty Yuen, JP

Members

Mr Hamilton Cheng

Ms Caroline Chiu

Ms Bella Chhoa

Mr Louis Chow

Ms Irene Chu

Mr Benny Chung

Ms Candy Fong

Prof Gu Zhaoyang?
Prof Hung Ming Yi

Mr Byron Khoo

Ms Bernardine Lam

Mr Kenneth Lau

Mr Leo Lee

Mr Gilbert Lee

Ms Alva Lee

Mr Jacob Lee Chi Hin
Mr Benjamin Lo

Mr Lo Nim Chi

Mr William Lo

Ms Fanny Lung

Prof Mo Lai Lan

Mr Christopher Morley
Prof James Arvid Ohlson?
Mr Simon Ng

Mr Simon John Riley
Mr Patrick Antonio Rozario
Ms Shelley So

Mr James Gary Stevenson
Mr Eric Tang

Mr Jim Tang

Prof Wang Xin

Mr Jason Yau Tsz Shun

! Appointed on 16 July 2023

2 Retired on 15 July 2023
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COMMITTEES AND PANELS
ZEEREEH

Process Review Panel

Chairperson
Ms Edith Shih

Members

Mr Patrick Law Fu-yuen

Mr Andrew Mak Yip-shing, BBS, JP
Mr Frederick Tsang Sui-cheong
Professor Anna Wong Wai-kwan

Mr Yu Chung-leung

Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP (ex-officio)

Ms Denise Lam (representative of the Secretary for Justice) (ex-officio)

Audit Investigation Board

Chairman
Mr Marek Grabowski
Ms Janey Lai (ex-officio)?

Members

Current members
Ms Ada Cheung?®
Ms Pearl Tie 4

Ms Carla Tu®

Ms Florence Wong©

Retired members
Ms Wincey Lam”
Mr Andrew Ng®
Mr Peter Nip ®

! Retired on 11 October 2023

2 Appointed on 12 October 2023

8 Appointed on 22 February 2024

4 Appointed on 6 October 2023

5 Appointed on 22 February 2024

6 Appointed on 6 October 2023

7 Retired on 30 June 2023

8 Appointed on 6 October 2023 and retired on 2 February 2024

9 Retired on 31 January 2024
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Accounting and Financial
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B RMBERE

The independent regulator of the accounting profession
BT EXENB L EE RIS

10/F, Two Taikoo Place, 979 King's Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong
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Tel BiE : (852) 2810 6321 Fax 88 1 (852) 2810 6320
Email & : general@afrc.org.hk Website #84F : www.afrc.org.hk
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